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Explanatory Note

Peabody Energy Corporation (Peabody or the Company) is filing this Amendment No. 2 on Form 10-K/A (Amended
Filing) in order to amend our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, originally
filed March 22, 2017 (Original Filing) and as amended on July 10, 2017 (Amendment No. 1), to correct for an
immaterial error in the previously reported 2014 through 2016 financial statements. When determining whether a
valuation allowance was required to reduce the deferred tax assets of one of our tax paying components to an amount
that was more likely than not to be realized, we inappropriately considered the future reversal of existing temporary
differences from another tax paying component as a source of taxable income. The initial error occurred in 2013 and
resulted in a $251.3 million understatement of the required valuation allowance and an overstatement of retained
earnings of the same amount. Although the error does not materially impact the statements of operations for the three
year period presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Form 10-K/A, the effect of correcting
the entire cumulative balance sheet difference in the current period would be material to the current period results. The
correction of the error increased the reported net deferred tax liability by $156.3 million and $166.8 million and
increased the accumulated deficit balance by those same amounts as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively,
compared to the amounts previously reported. This error had no impact on our cash flows from operations for any of
those years. The following items were impacted by these corrected disclosures:

Part II. Item 6. - We corrected the items impacted as a result of the error.

Part I1. Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Results of
Operations - We corrected the items impacted as a result of the error and updated the comparative disclosure as
applicable.

Part II. Item 9A. Controls and Procedures - We amended this item to disclose the material weakness that was
tdentified as a result of the error and to include the revised audit report of our independent registered public
accounting firm on our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016.

Part IV. Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statements - We corrected the items impacted in the financial statements,
included a revised audit report of our independent registered public accounting firm on our financial statements, and
updated Note 1. "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, Note 12. "Income Taxes", Note 23. "Earnings per
Share (EPS)", Note 28. "Summary of Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)", Note 29. "Segment and
Geographical Information" and Note 30. "Supplemental Guarantor/Non-Guarantor Financial Information", as well as
Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts, as applicable.

Other than as expressly set forth above and except with respect to certain conforming changes made to our Exhibit
Index, this Amended Filing does not, and does not purport to, update or restate the information in the Original Filing
or Amendment No. 1 or reflect any events that have occurred after the Original Filing was filed. See our Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
subsequent to our Original Filing for updated information.

We are including currently dated certifications by our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Accounting and
Financial Officer as Exhibits 31.5 and 31.6 under Section 302 and Exhibits 32.3 and 32.4 under Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as required by Rule 12b-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(Exchange Act).
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CAUTIONARY NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This report includes statements of our expectations, intentions, plans and beliefs that constitute “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and are intended to come within the safe harbor protection provided by those sections. These
statements relate to future events or our future financial performance, including, without limitation, the section
captioned “Outlook” in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. We
use words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “expect,” “may,” "forecast," “project,” “should,” “estimate,” “plan,” "outlook,
"likely," "will," "to be" or other similar words to identify forward-looking statements.
Without limiting the foregoing, all statements relating to our future operating results, anticipated capital expenditures,
future cash flows and borrowings and sources of funding are forward-looking statements and speak only as of the date
of this report. These forward-looking statements are based on numerous assumptions that we believe are reasonable,
but are subject to a wide range of uncertainties and business risks and actual results may differ materially from those
discussed in these statements. These factors are difficult to accurately predict and may be beyond our control. Factors
that could affect our results or an investment in our securities include, but are not limited to:
Factors related to our Chapter 11 Cases (as defined herein)
our ability to consummate the Second Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization of Debtors and Debtors in Possession,
dated January 27, 2017 (as further modified, the Plan) as confirmed by an order of the Bankruptcy Court entered on
March 17, 2017;
the effects of the Chapter 11 Cases on our operations, including customer, supplier, banking, insurance and other
relationships and agreements;
Bankruptcy Court rulings in the Chapter 11 Cases as well as the outcome of all other pending litigation and the
outcome of the Chapter 11 Cases in general;
the length of time that we will operate under Chapter 11 protection and the continued availability of operating capital
during the pendency of the proceedings;
the risks associated with third-party motions in the Chapter 11 Cases, which may interfere with our ability to
consummate the Plan and restructuring generally;
tncreased advisory costs to execute a plan of reorganization;
the volatility of the trading price of our common stock and the absence of correlation between any increases in the
¢rading price and our expectation that the common stock will be canceled and extinguished upon the Plan's effective
date (Plan Effective Date);
the risk that the Plan does not become effective, in which case there can be no assurance that the Chapter 11 Cases
will continue rather than be converted to Chapter 7 liquidation cases or that any alternative plan of reorganization
would be on terms as favorable to holders of claims and interests as the terms of the Plan;
Peabody Energy’s ability to use cash collateral and the possibility that Peabody Energy may be required to post
additional cash collateral to secure its obligations;
the effect of the Chapter 11 Cases on our relationships with third parties, regulatory authorities and employees;
the potential adverse effects of the Chapter 11 Cases on our liquidity, results of operations, or business prospects;
our ability to execute our business and restructuring plan;
increased administrative and legal costs related to the Chapter 11 Cases and other litigation and the inherent risks
involved in a bankruptcy process;
the cost, availability and access to capital and financial markets, including the ability to secure new financing after
emerging from the Chapter 11 Cases; and
the risk that the Chapter 11 Cases will disrupt or impede our international operations, including our business
operations in Australia.
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Other factors
competition in the energy market and supply and demand for our coal products, including the impact of alternative
energy sources, such as natural gas and renewables;
global steel demand and the downstream impact on metallurgical coal prices, and lower demand for our products by
electric power generators;
our ability to successfully consummate planned divestitures, including the planned sale of all of our equity interests in
Metropolitan Collieries Pty Ltd, the entity that owns the Metropolitan coal mine in New South Wales, Australia (the
Metropolitan Mine);
our ability to appropriately secure our requirements for reclamation, federal and state workers’ compensation, federal
coal leases and other obligations related to our operations, including our ability to utilize self-bonding and/or
successfully access the commercial surety bond market;
customer procurement practices and contract duration;
the impact of weather and natural disasters on demand, production and transportation;
reductions and/or deferrals of purchases by major customers and our ability to renew sales contracts;
credit and performance risks associated with customers, suppliers, contract miners, co-shippers, and trading, bank and
other financial counterparties;
eeologic, equipment, permitting, site access, operational risks and new technologies related to mining;
¢ransportation availability, performance and costs;
availability, timing of delivery and costs of key supplies, capital equipment or commodities such as diesel fuel, steel,
explosives and tires;
tmpact of take-or-pay arrangements for rail and port commitments for the delivery of coal;
successful implementation of business strategies, including, without limitation, the actions we are implementing to
improve our organization and respond to current market conditions;
.negotiation of labor contracts, employee relations and workforce availability, including, without limitation, attracting
and retaining key personnel;
changes in postretirement benefit and pension obligations and their related funding requirements;
replacement and development of coal reserves;
effects of changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates (primarily the Australian dollar);
effects of acquisitions or divestitures;
economic strength and political stability of countries in which we have operations or serve customers;
legislation, regulations and court decisions or other government actions, including, but not limited to, new
. environmental and mine safety requirements, changes in income tax regulations, sales-related royalties, or
other regulatory taxes and changes in derivative laws and regulations;
our ability to obtain and renew permits necessary for our operations;
titigation or other dispute resolution, including, but not limited to, claims not yet asserted;
terrorist attacks or security threats, including, but not limited to, cybersecurity breaches;
and
tmpacts of pandemic illnesses.
Factors related to our indebtedness and expected post-emergence capital structure under the Plan
the fact that our common stock will be canceled and extinguished upon the Plan Effective Date, if the Plan becomes
effective, with no payments made to the holders of our common stock;
the lack of an established market for the shares of new common stock (Reorganized PEC Common Stock) or the
preferred stock (Preferred Equity) to be issued pursuant to the Plan on the Plan Effective Date, and potential dilution
of Reorganized PEC Common Stock due to future issuances of equity securities;
our ability to generate sufficient cash to service all of our expected post-emergence indebtedness;
our post-emergence debt instruments and capital structure will place certain limits on our ability to pay dividends and
repurchase common stock;
our ability to comply with financial and other restrictive covenants in various agreements, including the credit facility
contemplated by the Plan; and
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other risks and factors, including those discussed in "Legal Proceedings," set forth Part I, Item 3 of this report and
“Risk Factors,” set forth in Part I, Item 1A of this report.

2016 Form ..
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When considering these forward-looking statements, you should keep in mind the cautionary statements in this
document and in our other Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) filings. These forward-looking statements
speak only as of the date on which such statements were made, and we undertake no obligation to update these
statements, except as required by the federal securities laws.

Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 10-K/A iii
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PART II

Item 6.  Selected Financial Data.

This item presents selected financial and other data about us for the most recent five fiscal years.

The table that follows and the discussion of our results of operations in 2016, 2015 and 2014 in Part II, Item 7.
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” includes references to and
analysis of Adjusted EBITDA which is a financial measure not recognized in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). These financial measures are not intended to serve as alternatives to U.S. GAAP
measures of performance and may not be comparable to similarly-titled measures presented by other companies.
Adjusted EBITDA is used by management as the primary metric to measure our segments’ operating performance. We
also believe non-U.S. GAAP performance measures are used by investors to measure our operating performance and
lenders to measure our ability to incur and service debt. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as (loss) income from
continuing operations before deducting net interest expense, income taxes, asset retirement obligation expense,
depreciation, depletion and amortization and reorganization items, net. Adjusted EBITDA is also adjusted for the
discrete items that management excluded in analyzing the segments' operating performance, as displayed in the
reconciliation. A reconciliation of income (loss) from continuing operations, net of income taxes to Adjusted EBITDA
is included on page 52 of this report. Adjusted EBITDA is not intended to serve as an alternative to U.S. GAAP
measures of performance and may not be comparable to similarly-titled measures presented by other companies.

The selected financial data for all periods presented reflect the classification as discontinued operations of certain
operations previously divested (by sale or otherwise).

We have derived the selected historical financial data as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015, 2014,
2013 and 2012 from our audited financial statements, adjusted retrospectively for items subsequently classified as
discontinued operations and the implementation of certain accounting literature, and for the revisions described in the
section entitled Correction of Prior Period Financial Information in Note 1 of the 2016 audited financial statements.
Also, all share and per share data have been retroactively restated to reflect the September 30, 2015 1-for-15 reverse
stock split. The following table should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements, including
the related notes to those financial statements, and Part II, Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.”

. 2016 Form
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The results of operations for the historical periods included in the following table are not necessarily indicative of the
results to be expected for future periods. In addition, Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” of this report includes a discussion
of risk factors that could impact our future results of operations.

Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

(In millions, except per share data)
Results of Operations Data

Total revenues $4,7153 $5,609.2 $6,7922 $7,013.7 $8,077.5
Costs and expenses 4,992.2 7,074.0 6,927.3 7,338.5 7,905.0
Operating (loss) profit (276.9 ) (1,464.8 ) (135.1 ) (324.8 ) 172.5
Interest expense, net 322.4 525.5 412.8 409.5 381.1
Reorganization items, net 159.0 — — — —

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes (7583 ) (1,990.3 ) (5479 ) (7343 ) (2086 )
Income tax (benefit) provision 94.5 ) (207.1 ) 147.4 (197.0 ) 262.3

Loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes (663.8 ) (1,783.2 ) (6953 ) (85373 ) 4709 )
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (57.6 ) (175.0 ) (28.2 ) (226.6 ) (1042 )

Net loss (7214 ) (1,9582 ) (7235 ) (7639 ) (5751 )
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 7.9 7.1 9.7 12.3 10.6
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $(729.3 ) $(1,965.3) $(733.2 ) $(776.2 ) $(585.7 )

Basic and diluted EPS - Loss from continuing operations $(36.72 ) $(98.65 ) $(39.51 ) $(30.91 ) $(26.95 )
Weighted average shares used in calculating basic and

diluted EPS 18.3 18.1 17.9 17.8 17.9
Dividends declared per share $— $0.075 $5.100 $5.100 $5.100
Other Data
Tons produced 175.6 208.7 227.2 218.4 2254
Tons sold 186.8 228.8 249.8 251.7 248.5
Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operations:
Operating activities $(229 ) $189 $441.0 $780.1 $1,599.8
Investing activities (244.1 ) (290.0 ) (3145 ) (5142 ) (1,070.1 )
Financing activities 907.9 267.7 (168.1 ) (3215 ) (663.3 )
Adjusted EBITDA 492.2 434.6 814.0 1,047.2 1,836.5
Balance Sheet Data (at period end)
Total assets $11,777.7 $10,9469 $13,126.4 $14,069.5 $15,721.7
Total long-term debt (including capital leases) 7,791.4 6,241.2 5,922.1 5,938.5 6,156.6
Total stockholders’ equity 181.5 751.7 2,529.0 3,696.6 4,938.8

. 2016 Form
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Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes $(663.8) $(1,783.2) $(695.3) $(537.3 ) $(470.9 )
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 4654 5722 655.7 740.3 663.4
Asset retirement obligation expenses 41.8 45.5 81.0 66.5 67.0
Asset impairment and mine closure costs 247.9 1,277.8 154.4 528.3 929.0

Selling and administrative expenses related to debt restructuring 21.5 — — — —
Settlement charges related to the Patriot bankruptcy

reorganization o o o 306 o
Chgnge ig Qefened tax asset valuation allowance related to 75 ) (1.0 ) 52.3 o o
equity affiliates

Amortization of basis difference related to equity affiliates — 4.9 5.7 6.3 4.6
Interest expense, net 322.4 525.5 412.8 409.5 381.1
Reorganization items, net 159.0 — — — —
Income tax (benefit) provision 94.5 ) (207.1 ) 1474 (197.0 ) 262.3
Adjusted EBITDA $492.2 $434.6 $814.0 $1,047.2 $1,836.5

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Overview

In 2016, we produced and sold 175.6 million and 186.8 million tons of coal, respectively, from continuing operations.
During that period, 76% of our total sales (by volume) were to U.S. electricity generators, 21% were to customers
outside the U.S. and 3% were to the U.S. industrial sector, with approximately 86% of our worldwide sales (by
volume) delivered under long-term contracts.

The principal business of our mining segments in the U.S. is the mining, preparation and sale of thermal coal, sold
primarily to electric utilities in the U.S. under long-term contracts, with a portion sold into the seaborne markets as
market conditions warrant. Our Powder River Basin Mining operations consist of our mines in Wyoming. The mines
in that segment are characterized by surface mining extraction processes, coal with a lower sulfur content and Btu and
higher customer transportation costs (due to longer shipping distances). Our Midwestern U.S. Mining operations
include our Illinois and Indiana mining operations, which are characterized by a mix of surface and underground
mining extraction processes, coal with a higher sulfur content and Btu and lower customer transportation costs (due to
shorter shipping distances). Our Western U.S. Mining operations reflect the aggregation of the New Mexico, Arizona
and Colorado mining operations. The mines in that segment are characterized by a mix of surface and underground
mining extraction processes, coal with a mid-range sulfur content and Btu. Geologically, our Powder River Basin
Mining operations mine sub-bituminous coal deposits, our Midwestern U.S. Mining operations mine bituminous coal
deposits and our Western U.S. Mining operations mine both bituminous and sub-bituminous coal deposits.

_ 2016 Form
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The business of our Australian operating platform is primarily export focused with customers spread across several
countries, while a portion of our metallurgical and thermal coal is sold within Australia. Generally, revenues from
individual countries vary year by year based on electricity and steel demand, the strength of the global economy,
governmental policies and several other factors, including those specific to each country. Our Australian Metallurgical
Mining operations consist of mines in Queensland and one in New South Wales, Australia. The mines in that segment
are characterized by both surface and underground extraction processes used to mine various qualities of metallurgical
coal (low-sulfur, high Btu coal). The metallurgical coal qualities include hard coking coal, semi-hard coking coal,
semi-soft coking coal and pulverized coal injection (PCI) coal. Our Australian Thermal Mining operations consist of
mines in New South Wales, Australia. The mines in that segment are characterized by both surface and underground
extraction processes used to mine low-sulfur, high Btu thermal coal. We classify our Australian mines within the
Australian Metallurgical Mining or Australian Thermal Mining segments based on the primary customer base and coal
reserve type of each mining operation. A small portion of the coal mined by the Australian Metallurgical Mining
segment is of a thermal grade. Similarly, a small portion of the coal mined by the Australian Thermal Mining segment
is of a metallurgical grade. Additionally, we may market some of our metallurgical coal products as a thermal coal
product from time to time depending on market conditions.

Our Trading and Brokerage segment engages in the direct and brokered trading of coal and freight-related contracts
through our trading and business offices. Coal brokering is conducted both as principal and agent in support of various
coal production-related activities that may involve coal produced from our mines, coal sourcing arrangements with
third-party mining companies or offtake agreements with other coal producers. Our Trading and Brokerage segment
also provides transportation-related services, which involves both financial derivative contracts and physical contracts.
Collectively, coal and freight-related hedging activities include both economic hedging and, from time to time, cash
flow hedging in support of our coal trading strategy.

Our Corporate and Other segment includes selling and administrative expenses, corporate hedging activities, mining
and export/transportation joint ventures, restructuring charges and activities associated with the optimization of our
coal reserve and real estate holdings, minimum charges on certain transportation-related contracts, the closure of
inactive mining sites and certain energy-related commercial matters.

Filing Under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code

On April 13, 2016, Peabody and a majority of its wholly owned domestic subsidiaries as well as one international
subsidiary in Gibraltar (the Filing Subsidiaries, and together with Peabody, the Debtors) filed voluntary petitions for
reorganization (the Bankruptcy Petitions) under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the U.S. Code (the Bankruptcy Code) in the
United States Bankruptcy Court for the Eastern District of Missouri (the Bankruptcy Court). The Company's
Australian operations and other international subsidiaries are not included in the filings. The Debtors continue to
operate their business as “debtors-in-possession” under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court and in accordance with
the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code and orders of the Bankruptcy Court. In general, as
debtors-in-possession, the Debtors are authorized under Chapter 11 to continue to operate as an ongoing business, but
may not engage in transactions outside the ordinary course of business without the prior approval of the Bankruptcy
Court.

The filings of the Bankruptcy Petitions constituted an event of default under our prepetition credit agreement as well
as the indentures governing certain of our debt instruments, as further described in Note 14. "Current and Long-term
Debt" to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, and all unpaid principal and accrued and unpaid interest
due thereunder became immediately due and payable. Any efforts to enforce such payment obligations are
automatically stayed as a result of the Bankruptcy Petitions and the creditors' rights of enforcement are subject to the
applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code.

In August 2016, we outlined a business plan intended to form the basis for our plan of reorganization, as further
described below. As a result of our reorganization, we expect to emerge from the Chapter 11 Cases with the
competitive cost structure necessary to improve our financial position and provide long-term stability for our
stakeholders in the face of potentially volatile market conditions. Important aspects of our emergence business
strategy include (i) a continued focus on safe, cost-disciplined mining operations and reclamation activities, (ii)
maximization of the most profitable elements of our asset base and potential divestiture of non-strategic assets, (iii)

13
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investment return-driven capital discipline, and (iv) a reduction of overall debt and fixed charges.

. 2016 Form
Peabody Energy Corporation 10-K/A 5

14



Edgar Filing: PEABODY ENERGY CORP - Form 424B3

Table of Contents

In order to successfully emerge from our Chapter 11 Cases, the Debtors must propose and obtain confirmation from
the Bankruptcy Court of a plan of reorganization that satisfies the requirements of the Bankruptcy Code. On January
27,2017, the Debtors filed with the Bankruptcy Court the Second Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization of Debtors
and Debtors in Possession (as further modified, the Plan) and the Second Amended Disclosure Statement with Respect
to Second Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization of Debtors and Debtors in Possession (previous versions of the Plan
and Disclosure Statement were filed with the Bankruptcy Court on December 22, 2016, January 25, 2017 and January
27, 2017). Subsequently, the Debtors solicited votes on the Plan. On March 15, 2017, the Debtors filed a revised
version of the Plan. On March 16, 2017, the Bankruptcy Court held a hearing to determine whether the Plan should be
confirmed. On March 17, 2017, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order confirming the Plan. The Plan provides for,
among other things, (1) classification and treatment of various claims and equity interests, (2) a reduction of our debt
upon emergence, and (3) recapitalization through a rights offering and private placement for equity securities of the
reorganized company. For additional details regarding the Bankruptcy Petitions and the Debtors' plan of
reorganization, refer to Note 1. "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

As discussed more fully in Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors,” our results of operations in the near term could be negatively
impacted by our indebtedness and our ability to consummate the Plan pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code, the price of
coal, cost of competing fuels, availability of transportation for coal shipments, labor relations, weather conditions,
unforeseen geologic conditions or equipment problems at mining locations and adverse changes in economic
conditions in the regions in which we sell coal. On a long-term basis, our results of operations could be impacted by
our ability to secure or acquire high-quality coal reserves, find replacement buyers for coal under contracts with
comparable terms to existing contracts, competition from other fuel sources or the passage of new or expanded
regulations that could limit our ability to mine, increase our mining costs or limit our customers’ ability to utilize coal
as fuel for electricity generation. In the past, we have achieved production levels that are relatively consistent with our
projections. We may adjust our future production levels in response to changes in market demand.

Results of Operations

Reverse Stock Split

Pursuant to the authorization provided at a special meeting of our stockholders held on September 16, 2015, we
completed a 1-for-15 reverse stock split of the shares of our common stock on September 30, 2015 (the Reverse Stock
Split). As a result of the Reverse Stock Split, every 15 shares of issued and outstanding common stock were combined
into one issued and outstanding share of Common Stock, without any change in the par value per share. Our common
stock began trading on a reverse stock split-adjusted basis on October 1, 2015. All share and per share data included in
this report has been retroactively restated to reflect the Reverse Stock Split.

Non-U.S. GAAP Financial Measures

The following discussion of our results of operations includes references to and analysis of Adjusted EBITDA, which
is a financial measure not recognized in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA is used by management as
the primary metric to measure our segments’ operating performance. We believe non-U.S. GAAP performance
measures are used by investors to measure our operating performance and lenders to measure our ability to incur and
service debt.

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as (loss) income from continuing operations before deducting net interest expense,
income taxes, asset retirement obligation expense, depreciation, depletion and amortization and reorganization items,
net. Adjusted EBITDA is also adjusted for the discrete items that management excluded in analyzing our segments'
operating performance, as displayed in the reconciliation. Adjusted EBITDA is not intended to serve as an alternative
to U.S. GAAP measures of performance and may not be comparable to similarly-titled measures presented by other
companies.

A reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to its most comparable measure under U.S. GAAP is included in Note 29.
"Segment and Geographic Information" of the consolidated financial statements, which information is incorporated
herein by reference.

Peabody Energy Corporation 6
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Year Ended December 31, 2016 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2015

Summary

Demand for seaborne metallurgical coal for the year ended December 31, 2016 increased compared to 2015, driven by
stronger demand in China following policy measures reducing domestic coal production and on stronger China steel
production. Worldwide steel production increased by 0.8% in 2016, according to data recently published by the World
Steel Association (WSA), with China's crude steel production up 1.2% compared to 2015. International seaborne
metallurgical and thermal coal prices increased sharply in the second half of 2016, reaching multi-year highs driven
by tightening coal supply and improved coal import demand from China. Benchmark pricing for premium low-vol
hard coking coal (Premium HCC) and premium low-vol pulverized coal injection (Premium PCI) coal for 2016 and
2015 were as follows (on a per tonne basis):

. Price Premium PCI Price

Contract Commencement Month: Premium HCC (Decrease) Coal (Decrease)

Increase Increase

2016 2015 % 2016 2015 %

January $81.00 $117.00 31 )% $69.00 $99.00 30 )%
April $84.00 $109.50 23 Y% $73.00 $92.50 21 )%
July $92.50 $93.00 (1 Y% $75.00 $73.00 3 %
October $200.00 $89.00 125 % $133.00 $71.00 87 %

Spot pricing for Premium HCC, Premium PCI coal, and Newcastle index thermal coal, and prompt month pricing for
Powder River Basin (PRB) 8,880 Btu/Lb coal and Illinois Basin 11,500 Btu/Lb coal during the year ended
December 31, 2016 is set forth in the table below. While these prices are related to our primary operating segments,
(with the exception of our Western U.S. Mining segment, for which there is no similar spot or prompt pricing data
available) such pricing is not necessarily indicative of the pricing we realized during the year since we generally sell
coal under long-term contracts where pricing is determined based on various factors. Such long-term contracts may
vary significantly in many respects, including price adjustment features, price reopener terms, coal quality
requirements, quantity parameters, permitted sources of supply, treatment of environmental constraints, extension
options, force majeure and termination and assignment provisions. Competition from other coal producers and
alternative fuels such as natural gas may also impact our realized pricing.

. December
High  Low  Average 31,2016
Premium HCC $300.00 $73.25 $143.24 $230.00
Premium PCI coal $188.65 $65.65 $97.23 $112.10
Newcastle index thermal coal $114.75 $48.80 $65.65 $88.40
PRB 8,800 Btu/Lb coal $12.10 $8.48 $10.19 $12.10

Illinois Basin 11,500 Btu/Lb coal $37.00 $28.50 $31.39 $35.00

In the U.S., electricity generation from coal decreased 9% during the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to
2015, according to the U.S. Energy Information Administration (EIA). U.S. electricity generation from coal was
unfavorably affected during that period by coal-to-gas switching due to comparatively low natural gas prices during
the first half of 2016, high coal stockpiles and lower heating-degree days due to mild weather. During the first half of
2016 coal and natural gas accounted for 28% and 33%, respectively, of the electricity generation mix. During the
second half of 2016, coal increased its relative share of the generation mix, as coal and natural gas accounted for
approximately 32% and 34%, respectively, of electricity generation.

Our revenues decreased during the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year ($893.9 million)
primarily due to lower realized pricing in the U.S. and internationally and lower sales volumes driven by the demand
and production factors mentioned above.

To mitigate the impact of lower coal pricing, we have continued to drive operational efficiencies, optimize production
across our mining platform and control expenses at all operational and administrative levels of the organization, which
has contributed to year-over-year decreases in our operating costs and expenses ($900.1 million) and selling and
administrative expenses ($23.0 million). Also included in operating results for the year ended December 31, 2016
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reduce headcount and costs across our operating segments and administrative functions, which are expected to better
align our workforce with our near-term outlook and improve our cost position moving forward.
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Net loss attributable to common stockholders was $729.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, a decrease of
$1,236.0 million compared to the net loss attributable to common stockholders of $1,965.3 million in the prior year.
Overall, Adjusted EBITDA of $492.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 reflected a year-over-year
increase of $57.6 million. In addition to higher Adjusted EBITDA, the results were favorably impacted by lower asset
impairment charges and decreased interest expense. These factors were partially offset by reorganization items
recorded in connection with our Chapter 11 Cases.

As of December 31, 2016, our available liquidity was approximately $0.9 billion consisting of cash and cash
equivalents. Refer to the "Liquidity and Capital Resources" section contained within this Item 7 for further discussion
of factors affecting our available liquidity.

Tons Sold
The following table presents tons sold by operating segment for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:
Year Ended %E;Cer;;se)
December 31tO Tons Sold
2016 2015 Tons %
(Tons in millions)
Australian Metallurgical Mining 134 157 (2.3 ) (14.6)%
Australian Thermal Mining 213 201 1.2 60 %
Powder River Basin Mining 113.1 138.8 (25.7) (18.5)%
Western U.S. Mining 13.7 179 4.2 ) (23.5)%
Midwestern U.S. Mining 183 212 (29 ) (13.7)%
Total tons sold from mining segments 179.8 213.7 (33.9) (15.9)%
Trading and Brokerage 70 151 (8.1 ) (53.6)%
Total tons sold 186.8 228.8 (42.0) (18.4)%
. 2016 Form
Peabody Energy Corporation 10-K/A 8

19



Edgar Filing: PEABODY ENERGY CORP - Form 424B3

Table of Contents

Supplemental Financial Data
The following table presents supplemental financial data by operating segment for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015:

Year Ended Increase

December 31, (Decrease)

2016 2015 % %
Revenues per Ton - Mining Operations
Australian Metallurgical $81.41 $75.04 $637 8 %
Australian Thermal 38.79 41.00 (@221 ) (O Y
Powder River Basin 13.02 1345 (043 ) 3 Y%
Western U.S. 38.30 38.09 0.21 1 %
Midwestern U.S. 4339 46.18 (2.79 ) (6 )%
Operating Costs per Ton - Mining Operations (1)
Australian Metallurgical $82.63 $76.20 $643 8 %
Australian Thermal 2856 3136 (280 ) 9 Y%
Powder River Basin 9.66 9.97 0.31 ) 3 Y
Western U.S. 30.90 27.78 3.12 11 %
Midwestern U.S. 3149 3349 (2.00 ) (6 )%
Gross Margin per Ton - Mining Operations (1)
Australian Metallurgical $(1.22) $(1.16) $(0.06) (5 Y%
Australian Thermal 10.23  9.64 0.59 6 %
Powder River Basin 3.36 3.48 0.12 ) 3 Y
Western U.S. 7.40 1031 (291 ) 28)%
Midwestern U.S. 1190 12.69 (0.79 ) (6 )%

Includes revenue-based production taxes and royalties; excludes depreciation, depletion and amortization; asset

(1) retirement obligation expenses; selling and administrative expenses; restructuring and pension settlement charges;
asset impairment; and certain other costs related to post-mining activities. Gross margin per ton is approximately
equivalent to segment Adjusted EBITDA divided by segment tons sold.

Revenues

The following table presents revenues by reporting segment for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:
Year Ended (Decrease) Increase
December 31, to Revenues
2016 2015 $ %

(Dollars in millions)
Australian Metallurgical Mining $1,090.4 $1,181.9 $(91.5 ) (7.7 )%

Australian Thermal Mining 824.9 823.5 1.4 02 %
Powder River Basin Mining 1,473.3  1,865.9 (392.6 ) (21.0 Y%
Western U.S. Mining 526.0 682.3 (156.3 ) (22.9 Y%
Midwestern U.S. Mining 792.5 981.2 (188.7 ) (19.2 Y%
Trading and Brokerage (10.9 ) 428 (53.7 ) (125.5)%
Corporate and Other 19.1 31.6 (12.5 ) (39.6 Y%
Total revenues $4,7153 $5,609.2 $(893.9) (159 Y%

Australia Metallurgical Mining. The decrease in our Australian Metallurgical Mining segment revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year was driven by unfavorable volume and mix variances ($186.9
million), partially offset by higher realized coal prices ($95.4 million). The volume decrease reflected lower sales
volumes from Queensland mines due to weather impacts and lower production at our North Goonyella Mine resulting
from a longwall move and a significant geological event which resulted in the cessation of the current longwall top
coal caving system.
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Australia Thermal Mining. The slight increase in our Australian Thermal Mining segment revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year was primarily driven by higher volumes ($47.6 million) offset by
lower realized coal prices ($46.2 million). The increase in tons sold was primarily driven by increased production at
our Wilpinjong Mine as the result of receiving temporary approval during 2016 to ship tons in excess of its
government mandated limit.

Powder River Basin Mining. The decrease in our Powder River Basin Mining segment revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year was largely driven by lower volume ($335.7 million) and lower
realized coal prices ($56.9 million). The decline in volume across all mines in the segment reflected the impacts on
customer demand of lower natural gas prices during the first half of 2016 and mild winter weather.

Western U.S. Mining. The decrease in our Western U.S. Mining segment revenues for the year ended December 31,
2016 compared to the prior year was primarily driven by an unfavorable volume and mix variance ($146.4 million).
The volume decrease reflected lower sales volumes at our Twentymile Mine due to lower production resulting from
longwall moves (including an extended move to a new seam) and geological issues. The volume decrease was also
driven by the litigation with Arizona Public Service Company and PacifiCorp that is further described in Note 26.
"Commitments and Contingencies" of our consolidated financial statements.

Midwestern U.S. Mining. Revenues from our Midwestern U.S. Mining segment decreased during the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year due to lower volume ($146.7 million) driven by the impacts on
customer demand of lower natural gas prices. Revenues for the segment were also impacted by lower realized coal
prices ($42.0 million) that resulted from the repricing of certain long-term supply contracts.

Trading and Brokerage. The decline in Trading and Brokerage segment revenues for the year ended December 31,
2016 compared to the prior year reflected lower physical volumes shipped due to the impact of depressed coal pricing
and unfavorable mark-to-market earnings from financial contract trading activities. We expect a significant portion of
the unfavorable mark-to-market earnings to be offset in future periods upon the delivery of physical shipments which
economically hedge the financial positions that related to the losses.

Loss From Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes

The following table presents loss from continuing operations before income taxes for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015:

Year Ended Increase (Decrease)

December 31, to Income

2016 2015 $ %

(Dollars in millions)
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes $(758.3) $(1,990.3) $1,232.0 619 %
Depreciation, depletion and amortization (4654 ) (572.2 ) 106.8 18.7 %
Asset retirement obligation expenses (41.8 ) (455 ) 3.7 8.1 %
Selling and administrative expenses related to debt restructuring 215 ) — (21,5 ) nm.
Asset impairment 2479 ) (1,277.8 ) 1,0299 80.6 %
Change in deferred tax asset valuation allowance related to equity affiliates 7.5 1.0 6.5 650.0 %
Amortization of basis difference related to equity affiliates — 4.9 ) 4.9 100.0 %
Interest expense (298.6 ) (4654 ) 166.8 358 %
Loss on early debt extinguishment (29.5 ) (67.8 ) 38.3 56.5 %
Interest income 5.7 7.7 (2.0 ) (26.0)%
Reorganization items, net (159.0 ) — (159.0 ) n.m.
Adjusted EBITDA $492.2 $434.6 $57.6 133 %

Results from continuing operations before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2016 increased compared to
the prior year primarily due to asset impairment charges recorded during the year ended December 31, 2015,
improved Adjusted EBITDA, decreased interest expense and decreased depreciation, depletion and amortization
expenses. Those factors were partially offset by reorganization items, net recorded during the year ended December
31, 2016.
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Adjusted EBITDA
The following table presents Adjusted EBITDA for each of our reporting segments for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015:

Increase
Year Ended (Decrease) to
December 31, Adjusted

EBITDA

2016 2015 $ %
(Dollars in millions)
Australian Metallurgical Mining $(16.3) $(18.2) $1.9 104 %
Australian Thermal Mining 217.6 1936 240 124 %
Powder River Basin Mining 379.9 4829 (103.0 (21.3 Y%

Western U.S. Mining 101.6 184.6 (83.0) (45.0 Y%
Midwestern U.S. Mining 217.3  269.7 (52.4) (194 Y%
Trading and Brokerage (722 ) 27.0 (99.2 ) (367.4)%
Corporate and Other (335.7) (705.0 ) 369.3 524 %
Adjusted EBITDA $492.2 $434.6 $57.6 133 %

Australian Metallurgical Mining. The improvement in Australian Metallurgical Mining segment Adjusted EBITDA
during the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year reflected higher coal pricing (driven by fourth
quarter price settlements), net of sales-related costs ($88.9 million), offset by lower volume across the segment caused
by the impact of longwall moves and geological issues at our North Goonyella Mine and the impact of wet weather at
certain mines ($79.7 million).

Australian Thermal Mining. The increase in Australian Thermal Mining segment Adjusted EBITDA during the year
ended December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year reflected production efficiencies attributable to mine sequencing
and lower port costs ($41.7 million), an increase in volume ($25.6 million), partially offset by lower coal pricing, net
of sales-related costs ($42.6 million).

Powder River Basin Mining. The decrease in Powder River Basin Mining segment Adjusted EBITDA during the year
ended December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year was due to lower volume driven by lower natural gas prices,
particularly in the first half of 2016 ($87.4 million), lower coal pricing, net of sales-related costs ($38.5 million) and
the impact of mine sequencing, primarily at our North Antelope Rochelle Mine ($21.6 million). These factors were
partially offset by reductions in materials, services and repairs resulting from our ongoing cost containment initiatives
($32.4 million) and lower diesel fuel and explosives pricing ($11.1 million).

Western U.S. Mining. The decrease in Western U.S. Mining segment Adjusted EBITDA during the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year was driven by longwall move costs at our Twentymile Mine ($38.5
million), a decline in volume driven by the contract litigation with Arizona Public Service Company and PacifiCorp
that is further described in Note 26. "Commitments and Contingencies" of our consolidated financial statements
($33.0 million) and the unfavorable impact of mine sequencing, primarily at our El Segundo Mine ($12.2 million).
Midwestern U.S. Mining. The decrease in Midwestern U.S. Mining segment Adjusted EBITDA for the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year was due to lower volume driven by lower natural gas prices,
particularly in the first half of 2016 ($50.1 million) and lower coal pricing, net of sales-related costs ($38.6 million),
partially offset by favorable materials, services and repairs costs ($15.2 million) and reductions in labor and overhead
charges ($11.4 million) resulting from our ongoing cost containment initiatives and favorable pricing and usage of
fuel and explosives ($9.5 million).

Trading and Brokerage. The decrease in Trading and Brokerage segment Adjusted EBITDA during the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year reflected the impact of decreased revenues described above and the
impact of damages awarded in 2015 relating to the Eagle Mining, LLC (Eagle) arbitration and the settlement of the
matter. Refer to Note 26. "Commitments and Contingencies" to the accompanying consolidated financial statements
for additional information related to the Eagle matter.
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Corporate and Other Adjusted EBITDA. The following table presents a summary of the components of Corporate and
Other Adjusted EBITDA for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Year Ended i?cerce;esaese)
December 31,
to Income

2016 2015 $ %

(Dollars in millions)
Resource management activities (1) $19.0 $322  $(13.2) (41.0)%
Selling and administrative expenses (excluding debt restructuring) (131.9 ) (176.4 ) 44.5 252 %
Restructuring charges (155 ) (235 ) 8.0 34.0 %
Corporate hedging (241.0 ) (436.8 ) 1958 448 %
UMWA VEBA Settlement 68.1 — 68.1 n.m.
Other items, net (344 ) (100.5 ) 66.1 65.8 %
Corporate and Other Adjusted EBITDA $(335.7) $(705.0) $369.3 524 %

(1) Includes gains (losses) on certain surplus coal reserve and surface land sales and property management costs and
revenues.
Includes results from equity affiliates (before the impact of related changes in deferred tax asset valuation
(2) allowance and amortization of basis difference), costs associated with post mining activities, certain coal royalty
expenses, gains (losses) on certain asset disposals, minimum charges on certain transportation-related contracts and
expenses related to our other commercial activities.
The increase associated with corporate hedging results, which includes foreign currency and commodity hedging, was
due to lower hedge realizations. During the year ended December 31, 2016, a gain of $68.1 million was recognized for
the voluntary employee beneficiary association (VEBA) settlement with the United Mine Workers of America
(UMWA) as further described in Note 27. "Matters Related to the Bankruptcy of Patriot Coal Corporation” of our
consolidated financial statements. The significant reduction in selling and administrative expenses during the year
ended December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year largely reflected the impact of our ongoing cost containment
initiatives, including past restructuring activities. The increase associated with "Other items, net" is primarily
attributable to lower charges on certain transportation-related contracts as compared to prior year and improved
Middlemount results driven by favorable pricing in the fourth quarter of 2016. Restructuring charges decreased during
the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year due to the larger staffing reductions at corporate and
regional offices during the first half of 2015. Resource management results decreased during the year ended December
31, 2016 compared to the prior year due to increased gains from the disposal of non-core assets, primarily from
surplus lands in the Midwestern U.S. during 2015.
Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization. The following table presents a summary of depreciation, depletion and
amortization expense by segment for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Increase
Year Ended to Income
December 31,
2016 2015 $ %

(Dollars in millions)
Australian Metallurgical Mining $(118.7) $(178.9) $60.2 33.7%
Australian Thermal Mining (102.5 ) (108.0 ) 5.5 51 %
Powder River Basin Mining (1234 ) (138.5 ) 15.1 10.9%

Western U.S. Mining 452 ) (553 ) 10.1 18.3%
Midwestern U.S. Mining (562 ) (69.0 ) 128 18.6%
Trading and Brokerage 0.2 ) (0.6 ) 0.4 66.7 %
Corporate and Other (19.2 ) (219 )27 12.3%
Total $(465.4) $(572.2) $106.8 18.7%
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Additionally, the following table presents a summary of our weighted-average depletion rate per ton for active mines
in each of our mining segments for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Year Ended

December 31,

2016 2015
Australian Metallurgical Mining $4.36 $5.27
Australian Thermal Mining 253 251
Powder River Basin Mining 0.71  0.69
Western U.S. Mining 092 093
Midwestern U.S. Mining 0.53 045
The decrease in depreciation, depletion and amortization expense during the year ended December 31, 2016 compared
to the prior year reflected lower sales volumes from our mining platform. Depreciation, depletion and amortization
was also impacted compared to the prior year by a reduction in the carrying value at certain of our Australian
Metallurgical mines due to impairment charges recognized during 2015.
Selling and Administrative Expenses Related to Debt Restructuring. The general and administrative expenses related
to debt restructuring recorded during the year ended December 31, 2016 related primarily to legal and other
professional fees incurred in connection with debt restructuring initiatives prior to the Debtors' filing of the
Bankruptcy Petitions.
Asset Impairment. We recognized $247.9 million and $1,277.8 million in aggregate asset impairment charges during
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Refer to Note 4. "Asset Impairment" to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for further information regarding the nature and composition of those charges, which
information is incorporated herein by reference.
Interest Expense. The decrease in interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year is
primarily due to the impact of our filing of the Bankruptcy Petitions, specifically only accruing adequate protection
payments subsequent to the Petition Date to certain secured lenders and other parties in accordance with Section
502(b)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code, partially offset by increased interest recorded in connection with additional
prepetition borrowings under the 2013 Revolver and increased expense related to additional letters of credit issued in
support of various obligations.
Loss on Early Debt Extinguishment. The decrease in loss on early debt extinguishment charges for the year ended
December 31, 2016 as compared to prior year was driven by higher charges recorded during the year ended December
31, 2015 related to the repurchase of $566.9 million aggregate principal amount of our 2016 Notes compared to the
charges recorded during the year ended December 31, 2016 related to the repayment of our DIP Term Loan Facility.
Reorganization Items, Net. The reorganization items recorded during the year ended December 31, 2016 related to
expenses in connection with our Chapter 11 Cases. Refer to Note 2. "Reorganization Items, Net" to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for further information regarding our reorganization items.
Loss from Continuing Operations, Net of Income Taxes
The following table presents loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes, for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015:

Year Ended Egcrease )
December 31, ecrease

to Income
2016 2015 $ %

(Dollars in millions)
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes $(758.3) $(1,990.3) $1,232.0 619 %
Income tax benefit 94.5 ) (207.1 ) (112.6 ) (54.4)%
Loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes $(663.8) $(1,783.2) $1,119.4 62.8 %
Results from continuing operations, net of income taxes, increased for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to
the prior year due to the effect of higher before-tax earnings, partially offset by the unfavorable effect of income taxes.
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Income Tax Benefit. The year-over-year unfavorable effect of income taxes was driven by higher benefits recorded in
2015 as compared to 2016 for the tax allocation to continuing operations related to the tax effects of items credited
directly to "Accumulated other comprehensive loss", the release of reserves related to uncertain tax positions and the
election to carry back specified liability losses ten years. These unfavorable factors were partially offset by lower
expense in Australia due to reduced before-tax earnings in 2016 as compared to 2015. Refer to Note 12. "Income
Taxes" to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information.

Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders

The following table presents net loss attributable to common stockholders for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015:

Year Ended igcrease )
December 31, ecrease

to Income
2016 2015 $ %

(Dollars in millions)
Loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes  $(663.8) $(1,783.2) $1,1194 62.8 %
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (57.6 ) (175.0 ) 1174 67.1 %

Net loss (7214 ) (1,958.2 ) 1,236.8 632 %
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 79 7.1 (0.8 ) (11.3)%
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $(729.3) $(1,965.3) $1,236.0 629 %

Net results attributable to common stockholders increased during the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the
prior year largely due to the favorable change in results from continuing operations, net of income taxes, as discussed
above, and the favorable impact of changes in results from discontinued operations.

Loss from Discontinued Operations, Net of Income Taxes. The improved results from discontinued operations for the
year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year was driven primarily by Patriot bankruptcy related charges
associated with black lung liabilities and the UMWA Combined Benefit Fund totaling $132.5 million recognized
during 2015. Results for the year ended December 31, 2015 also reflected a $34.7 million charge related to credit
support that we provided to Patriot and a charge of $9.7 million associated with the Queensland Bulk Handling Pty
Ltd. litigation. These costs were partially offset by charges of $54.3 million recorded during the year ended December
31, 2016 associated with the UMWA 1974 Pension Plan settlement. Those matters are discussed further in Note 26.
"Commitments and Contingencies" and Note 27. "Matters Related to the Bankruptcy of Patriot Coal Corporation" to
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Diluted EPS
The following table presents diluted EPS for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:
Year Ended Increase
December 31, to EPS
2016 2015 $ %
Diluted EPS attributable to common stockholders:
Loss from continuing operations $(36.72) $(98.65 ) $61.93 62.8%
Loss from discontinued operations (3.15 ) (9.64 ) 649 673%
Net loss $(39.87) $(108.29) $68.42 63.2%

Diluted EPS increased in the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year commensurate with the
favorable change in results from continuing and discontinued operations between those periods.

Year Ended December 31, 2015 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2014

Summary

Demand for seaborne metallurgical coal for the year ended December 31, 2015 was adversely impacted by a 2.5%
decrease in worldwide steel production compared to the prior year, according to data published by the WSA. Policy
measures in China aimed toward supporting the domestic coal industry also limited imports into China during 2015.
Such measures, along with a lack of growth in global electricity generation from coal also hampered demand for
seaborne thermal coal in 2015.
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These adverse demand factors and the impact of excess metallurgical and thermal supply continued to weigh on
international coal prices. Benchmark pricing Premium HCC and Premium PCI coal for 2015 and 2014 were as follows
(on a per tonne basis):

Premium PCI

Contract Commencement Month: Premium HCC  Price Coal Price
2015 2014  DECTEASe 5015 ggpy  Decrease
January $117.00 $143.00 (18 Y% $99.00 $116.00 (15 )%
April $109.50 $120.00 (9 )% $92.50 $100.00 (8 )%
July $93.00 $120.00 (23 Y% $73.00 $100.00 27 )%
October $89.00 $119.00 25 Y% $71.00 $99.00 (28 )%

Spot pricing for Premium HCC, Premium PCI coal, and Newcastle index thermal coal, and prompt month pricing for
Powder River Basin (PRB) 8,880 Btu/Lb coal and Illinois Basin 11,500 Btu/Lb coal during the year ended
December 31, 2015 is set forth in the table below. While these prices are related to our primary operating segments,
(with the exception of our Western U.S. Mining segment, for which there is no similar spot or prompt pricing data
available) such pricing is not necessarily indicative of the pricing we realized during the year since we generally sell
coal under long-term contracts where pricing is determined based on various factors. Such long-term contracts may
vary significantly in many respects, including price adjustment features, price reopener terms, coal quality
requirements, quantity parameters, permitted sources of supply, treatment of environmental constraints, extension
options, force majeure and termination and assignment provisions. Competition from other coal producers and
alternative fuels such as natural gas may also impact our realized pricing.

. December
High  Low  Average 31,2015
Premium HCC $110.05 $72.00 $87.07 $ 76.45
Premium PCI coal $94.10 $61.65 $73.48 $ 67.95
Newcastle index thermal coal $71.10 $50.60 $58.94 $ 50.60
PRB 8,800 Btu/Lb coal $12.27 $9.43 $10.44 $10.36
Illinois Basin 11,500 Btu/Lb coal $36.00 $29.50 $31.49 $ 31.60

In the U.S., electricity generation from coal decreased 13% during the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to
2014, according to the U.S. EIA. U.S. electricity generation from coal was unfavorably affected during that period by
coal-to-gas switching due to relatively lower natural gas prices and lower heating-degree days due to mild winter
weather. Production in the U.S. Powder River Basin was also impacted by higher-than-average rainfall in the second
quarter of 2015, which further contributed, along with the above factors, to a decrease in sales volumes in our total
U.S. mining platform of 7% for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year.

Our revenues decreased during the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year ($1,183.0 million)
primarily due to lower realized pricing and lower sales volumes driven by the demand and production factors
mentioned above.

To mitigate the impact of lower coal pricing, we continued to drive operational efficiencies, optimize production
across our mining platform and control expenses at all operational and administrative levels of the organization, which
led to year-over-year decreases in our operating costs and expenses ($709.2 million) and selling and administrative
expenses ($50.7 million). Also included in operating results for the year ended December 31, 2015 were aggregate
restructuring charges of $23.5 million, recognized in connection with certain actions initiated to reduce headcount and
costs at several operating sites in Australia and to amend our administrative organizational structure.

Net loss attributable to common stockholders was $1,965.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, an increase
of $1,209.0 million compared to the net loss attributable to common stockholders of $733.2 million in the prior year.
The increased loss reflected an adverse impact from asset impairment charges, a year-over-year decrease in Adjusted
EBITDA and unfavorable results from discontinued operations. Those factors were partially offset by a favorable
income tax variance.

As mentioned above, we recognized material impairments during the year ended December 31, 2015 ($1,277.8
million). Additional information surrounding those charges may be found in Note 4. "Asset Impairment" to the
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Tons Sold
The following table presents tons sold by operating segment for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:
Year Ended Decrease
December 31to Tons Sold
2015 2014 Tons %
(Tons in millions)

Australian Metallurgical Mining 157 172 (1.5 ) (8.7 Y%
Australian Thermal Mining 20.1 21.0 (0.9 ) 4.3 Y
Powder River Basin Mining 138.8 142.6 (3.8 ) (2.7 Y%
Western U.S. Mining 179 238 (5.9 ) (24.8)%
Midwestern U.S. Mining 21.2 250 3.8 ) (15.2)%
Total tons sold from mining segments 213.7 229.6 (15.9) (6.9 )%
Trading and Brokerage 151 202 (5.1 ) 252)%
Total tons sold 228.8 249.8 (21.0) (8.4 Y%
Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 16
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Supplemental Financial Data
The following table presents supplemental financial data by operating segment for the years ended December 31, 2015

and 2014:

Year Ended (Decrease)

December 31, Increase

2015 2014 $ %
Revenues per Ton - Mining Operations
Australian Metallurgical $75.04 $93.81 $(18.77) (20)%
Australian Thermal 41.00 50.46 946 ) (19%
Powder River Basin 13.45 13.49 004 )— %
Western U.S. 38.09 37.90 0.19 1 %
Midwestern U.S. 46.18 4799 (1.81 ) @4
Operating Costs per Ton - Mining Operations (1)
Australian Metallurgical $76.20 $102.60 $(26.40) (26)%
Australian Thermal 31.36 37.87 6.51 ) 7%
Powder River Basin 9.97 9.92 0.05 1 %
Western U.S. 27.78  26.69 1.09 4 %
Midwestern U.S. 3349 35.70 221 )6 )%
Gross Margin per Ton - Mining Operations (1)
Australian Metallurgical $(1.16) $(8.79 ) $7.63 87 %
Australian Thermal 9.64 12.59 295 ) 23)%
Powder River Basin 3.48 3.57 0.09 )3
Western U.S. 10.31 11.21 090 ) @8
Midwestern U.S. 12.69 12.29 0.40 3 %

Includes revenue-based production taxes and royalties; excludes depreciation, depletion and amortization; asset

(1) retirement obligation expenses; selling and administrative expenses; restructuring and pension settlement charges;
asset impairment; and certain other costs related to post-mining activities. Gross margin per ton is approximately
equivalent to segment Adjusted EBITDA divided by segment tons sold.

Revenues

The following table presents revenues by reporting segment for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:
Year Ended Decrease
December 31, to Revenues
2015 2014 $ %

(Dollars in millions)
Australian Metallurgical Mining $1,181.9 $1,613.8 $(431.9 ) (26.8)%
Australian Thermal Mining 823.5 1,058.0 (2345 ) (22.2)%
Powder River Basin Mining 1,865.9 1,922.9 (57.0 ) (3.0 )%

Western U.S. Mining 682.3 902.8 (220.5 ) 24.4)%
Midwestern U.S. Mining 981.2 1,198.1 (2169 ) (18.1)%
Trading and Brokerage 42.8 58.4 (15.6 ) (26.7)%
Corporate and Other 31.6 38.2 (6.6 ) (17.3)%
Total revenues $5,609.2 $6,792.2 $(1,183.0) (17.4)%

Australia Metallurgical Mining. The decrease in our Australian Metallurgical Mining segment revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year was driven by lower realized coal prices ($279.9 million) and
the unfavorable impact of changes in volume and mix ($152.0 million). The volume decrease reflected lower sales

volumes from our Burton Mine due to an amended agreement with the contract miner reached in the second half of
2014 that provided for reduced production from the site and the exhaustion of reserves at our Eaglefield Mine in the
fourth quarter of 2014. Those negative volume drivers were partially offset by increased production and yield at our
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Australia Thermal Mining. The decrease in our Australian Thermal Mining segment revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year was primarily driven by lower realized coal prices ($176.0 million) and
the unfavorable impact of changes in volume and mix ($58.5 million) as demand for seaborne thermal coal declined.
The decrease in tons sold reflected the unfavorable production impact of weather-related adverse mining conditions
and mine sequencing at our surface operations.
Powder River Basin Mining. The decrease in Powder River Basin Mining segment revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year was largely driven by a 3.8 million ton reduction in sales volume as
realized coal prices were flat. The decline in volume reflected the impacts on customer demand of low natural gas
prices and a decrease in heating-degree days during the winter months, as well as production difficulties caused by
severe rains and pit flooding, primarily in the second quarter.
Western U.S. Mining. The decrease in Western U.S. Mining segment revenues for the year ended December 31, 2015
compared to the prior year was driven by an unfavorable volume and mix variance ($232.7 million) primarily due to
lower coal demand and a lack of export opportunities at current coal pricing. The effect of lower volumes was
partially offset by slightly higher realized coal pricing ($12.2 million) on improved customer mix.
Midwestern U.S. Mining. Revenues from our Midwestern U.S. Mining segment were adversely impacted during the
year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year by unfavorable volume and mix variance ($180.1 million)
driven by coal demand due to lower natural gas prices and transition of production from our Gateway Mine to our
then new Gateway North Mine in the fourth quarter of 2015. Revenues for the segment were also impacted by lower
realized coal pricing ($36.8 million) due to the effect of contract price re-openers and the renewal of sales contracts at
less favorable prices.
Trading and Brokerage. The decline in Trading and Brokerage segment revenues for the year ended December 31,
2015 compared to the prior year reflected lower physical volumes shipped due to the opportunity-limiting impact of
depressed coal pricing, partially offset by improved mark-to-market earnings from financial contract trading.
Loss From Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes
The following table presents loss from continuing operations before income taxes for the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014:

(Decrease) Increase

Year Ended to Income

December 31,

2015 2014 $ %

(Dollars in millions)
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes $(1,990.3) $(547.9) $(1,442.4) (263.3 Y%
Depreciation, depletion and amortization (572.2 ) (655.7 ) 83.5 12.7 %
Asset retirement obligation expenses (45.5 ) (81.0 ) 355 43.8 %
Asset impairment (1,277.8 ) (1544 ) (1,123.4 ) (727.6 Y%
Ch?pge in deferred tax asset valuation allowance related to equity 10 (523 ) 533 1019 %
affiliates
Amortization of basis difference related to equity affiliates 4.9 ) (5.7 ) 0.8 14.0 %
Interest expense (4654 ) (426.6 ) (38.8 ) (9.1 )%
Loss on early debt extinguishment (67.8 ) (1.6 ) (66.2 ) (4,137.5)%
Interest income 7.7 154 (7.7 ) (50.0 )%
Adjusted EBITDA $434.6 $814.0 $(B3794 ) 466 )%

Results from continuing operations before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2015 declined compared to
the prior year primarily due to higher asset impairment charges and lower Adjusted EBITDA (discussed below). Refer
to Note 4. "Asset Impairment" to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further information
regarding the nature and composition of impairment charges.
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Adjusted EBITDA
The following table presents Adjusted EBITDA for each of our reporting segments for the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014:

Increase

(Decrease) to
Year Ended Adjusted
December 31, EBITDA
2015 2014 $ %

(Dollars in millions)
Australian Metallurgical Mining $(18.2) $(151.1) $132.9 88.0 %
Australian Thermal Mining 193.6 264.1 (70.5 ) (26.7)%
Powder River Basin Mining 4829 509.0 26.1 ) (5.1 Y%

Western U.S. Mining 184.6  266.9 (82.3 ) (30.8)%
Midwestern U.S. Mining 269.7 306.9 372 ) (12.1)%
Trading and Brokerage 27.0 14.9 12.1 81.2 %
Corporate and Other (705.0 ) (396.7 ) (308.3 ) 77.7 %
Adjusted EBITDA $434.6 $814.0 $(379.4) (46.6)%

Australian Metallurgical Mining. The improvement in Australian Metallurgical Mining segment Adjusted EBITDA
during the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year reflected (1) the impact of exchange rate
movements ($239.5 million), (2) favorable cost performance from our surface mining operations driven by an
amended agreement with the contract miner at the Burton Mine reached in the second half of 2014 and the
owner-operator conversion of our Moorvale Mine completed at the end of the third quarter of 2014 ($81.2 million),
(3) lower diesel fuel prices ($49.8 million), and (4) improved longwall performance from our underground mines
driven by longwall top coal caving technology issues experienced at our North Goonyella Mine in the prior year
($41.1 million). The above factors were partially offset by lower coal pricing, net of sales-related costs ($260.3
million).

Australian Thermal Mining. The decrease in Australian Thermal Mining segment Adjusted EBITDA during the year
ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year reflected lower coal pricing, net of sales-related costs ($161.5
million) and lower production due to mine sequencing at our Wilpinjong Mine ($67.7 million). Those adverse factors
were partially offset by the net impact of exchange rate movements ($133.0 million) and lower fuel pricing ($21.5
million).

Powder River Basin Mining. The decrease in Powder River Basin Mining segment Adjusted EBITDA during the year
ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year was driven by a decline in sales volume ($42.8 million) and
costs associated with higher overburden ratios due to mine sequencing ($11.0 million). Those negative factors were
partially offset by the favorable net impact from the pricing and usage of fuel and explosives ($31.4 million).

Western U.S. Mining. The decrease in Western U.S. Mining segment Adjusted EBITDA during the year ended
December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year was driven by a decline in volume ($88.7 million) and costs associated
with higher overburden ratios due to mine sequencing ($8.3 million), partially offset by favorable fuel pricing ($13.6
million).

Midwestern U.S. Mining. The decrease in Midwestern U.S. Mining segment Adjusted EBITDA for the year ended
December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year was driven by a decline in volumes ($60.8 million), lower realized coal
prices, net of sales-related costs ($34.2 million), and costs associated with higher overburden ratios at certain of our
surface mines due to mine sequencing ($15.2 million). These adverse factors were partially offset by lower fuel
pricing ($38.8 million) and reduced year-over-year expenditures related to materials and supplies, labor and other
operations support spending from ongoing cost containment initiatives ($33.3 million).

Trading and Brokerage. The increase in Trading and Brokerage segment Adjusted EBITDA during the year ended
December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year reflected the impact of damages awarded in the first quarter of 2014
relating to the Eagle arbitration and the settlement of the matter reached in the third quarter of 2015, in addition to
improved mark-to-market earnings on financial contract trading. Refer to Note 26. "Commitments and Contingencies"
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Corporate and Other Adjusted EBITDA. The following table presents a summary of the components of Corporate and
Other Adjusted EBITDA for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Year Ended Increase (Decrease)
December 31, to Income
2015 2014 $ %
(Dollars in millions)
Resource management activities (1) $322 $309 $1.3 42 %
Selling and administrative expenses (176.4 ) (227.1 ) 50.7 223 %
Restructuring and pension settlement charges (23.5 ) (26.0 ) 2.5 9.6 %
Corporate hedging (436.8 ) (49.6 ) (387.2 ) (780.6)%
Other items, net (100.5 ) (1249 ) 244 195 %

Corporate and Other Adjusted EBITDA $(705.0) $(396.7) $(308.3) (77.7 Y%
(1) Includes gains (losses) on certain surplus coal reserve and surface land sales and property management costs and
revenues.
Includes results from equity affiliates (before the impact of related changes in deferred tax asset valuation
(2) allowance and amortization of basis difference), costs associated with post mining activities, certain coal royalty
expenses, gains (losses) on certain asset disposals, minimum charges on certain transportation-related contracts and
expenses related to our other commercial activities.
Resource management results increased slightly during the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year
due to increased gains from the disposal of non-core assets, primarily from surplus lands in the Midwestern U.S. The
significant reduction in selling and administrative expenses during the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the
prior year largely reflected the impact of our cost containment efforts. The decrease in restructuring and pension
settlement charges during the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year was driven by a lump sum
payout option offered to certain qualifying participants of one of our plans in 2014, partially offset by an increase in
voluntary and involuntary workforce reduction activity in 2015 related to our repositioning efforts to appropriately
align our cost structure relative to prevailing global coal industry conditions. The unfavorable variance associated with
corporate hedging results, which includes foreign currency and commodity hedging, resulted from the year-over-year
weakening of the Australian dollar and decrease in fuel prices. The improvement in "Other items, net" during the year
ended 2015 compared to the prior year reflected improved Middlemount results, as lower foreign currency rates and
operational improvements at the mine more than outpaced the effect of lower coal pricing, offset by higher minimum
charges on certain transportation-related contracts.
Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization. The following table presents a summary of depreciation, depletion and
amortization expense by segment for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:
Increase
Year Ended
December 31,
2015 2014 $ %
(Dollars in millions)
Australian Metallurgical Mining $(178.9) $(221.5) $42.6 19.2%
Australian Thermal Mining (108.0 ) (1189 ) 109 9.2 %
Powder River Basin Mining (1385 ) (1464 )79 54 %

to Income

Western U.S. Mining (553 ) 66.6 ) 113 17.0%
Midwestern U.S. Mining 69.0 )96 )06 09 %
Trading and Brokerage 0.6 ) (1.2 )06 50.0%
Corporate and Other 219 ) @315 )96 305%
Total $(572.2) $(655.7) $83.5 12.7%

Additionally, the following table presents a summary of our weighted-average depletion rate per ton for active mines
in each of our mining segments for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:
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2015 2014
Australian Metallurgical Mining $5.27 $4.86
Australian Thermal Mining 2.51  3.09
Powder River Basin Mining 0.69 0.70

Western U.S. Mining 093 0.94
Midwestern U.S. Mining 045 046
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The decrease in depreciation, depletion and amortization expense during the year ended December 31, 2015 compared
to the prior year reflected lower sales volumes from our mining platform. Depreciation, depletion and amortization
was also impacted compared to the prior year by a reduction in the asset bases at several of our mines due to
impairment charges recognized during the second quarter of 2015 and the fourth quarter of 2014. Refer to Note 4.
"Asset Impairment" to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further information regarding these
impairments. These factors were slightly offset by additional depreciation related to assets placed into service in the
fourth quarter of 2015 in connection with our then new Gateway North Mine.

Asset Retirement Obligation Expenses. The decrease in asset retirement obligation expenses during the year ended
December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year was driven by an asset retirement obligation liability of $22.2 million
recorded in the fourth quarter of 2014 due to the nonperformance of a contract miner at a coal reserve property in the
Eastern U.S. Because mining operations had ceased at that operation, a corresponding charge for the full amount of
the liability was recorded to “Asset retirement obligation expenses” in the consolidated statement of operations during
2014. The year-over-year decrease in 2015 also reflected lower amortization that resulted from an overall decrease in
tons sold across our mining segments and lower expense for ongoing reclamation in certain U.S. regions due to a
reduction in affected acreage.

Asset Impairment. We recognized $1,277.8 million and $154.4 million in aggregate asset impairment charges during
the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Refer to Note 4. "Asset Impairment" to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for further information regarding the nature and composition of those charges, which
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Change in Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance Related to Equity Affiliates. During the year ended December 31,
2014, we recognized a $52.3 million charge for our pro-rata share of a valuation allowance on Middlemount's
Australian net deferred tax assets. Based on available sources of taxable income, we determined that the net deferred
tax assets were no longer considered more likely than not of being realized. That conclusion was driven by a then
recent history of operating losses, as sustained weakness in seaborne metallurgical coal prices had more than offset a
successful owner-operator conversion completed in 2013 and an ongoing series of operational efficiency initiatives
conducted at the site that had improved the mine's cost structure.

Interest Expense. The increase in interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year
reflected higher interest rates, as compared with previously outstanding debt, related to the $1.0 billion aggregate
principal amount of 10.00% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due March 2022 issued in March 2015 and higher
overall debt levels and costs associated with additional letters of credit that were issued in 2015. Those factors were
partially offset by lower interest charges recognized in 2015 for litigation matters primarily due to charges recorded in
the third quarter of 2014 related to the Sumiseki Materials Co. Ltd. litigation.

Loss on Early Debt Extinguishment. The loss on early debt extinguishment charges recorded during the year ended
December 31, 2015 related to the repurchase of our 2016 Senior Notes. Refer to Note 14. "Current and Long-term
Debt" to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information related to the repurchase.
Loss from Continuing Operations, Net of Income Taxes

The following table presents loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes, for the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014:

Year Ended (Decrease) Increase
December 31, to Income
2015 2014 $ %

(Dollars in millions)
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes $(1,990.3) $(547.9) $(1,442.4) (263.3)%
Income tax (benefit) provision 207.1 ) 1474 354.5 240.5 %
Loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes $(1,783.2) $(695.3) $(1,087.9) (156.5)%
Results from continuing operations, net of income taxes, declined for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to
the prior year due to the effect lower before-tax earnings, partially offset by the favorable effect of income taxes.
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Income Tax (Benefit) Provision. The year-over-year favorable effect of income taxes was driven by the tax effect of
lower earnings, the tax allocation to continuing operations related to the tax effects of items credited directly to
"Accumulated other comprehensive loss", the election to carry back specified liability losses ten years, and a lower
foreign valuation allowance in 2015 compared to 2014. These favorable factors were partially offset by a lower 2015
release of reserves related to uncertain tax positions compared to similar releases in 2014. Refer to Note 12. "Income
Taxes" to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information.

Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders

The following table presents net loss attributable to common stockholders for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014:

Year Ended (Decrease) Increase
December 31, to Income
2015 2014 $ %

(Dollars in millions)
Loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes ~ $(1,783.2) $(695.3) $(1,087.9) (156.5)%
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (175.0 ) (28.2 ) (146.8 ) (520.6)%

Net loss (1,958.2 ) (723.5 ) (1,234.7 ) (170.7)%
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 7.1 9.7 2.6 268 %
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $(1,965.3) $(733.2) $(1,232.1) (168.0)%

Net results attributable to common stockholders declined during the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the
prior year largely due to the unfavorable change in results from continuing operations, net of income taxes, as
discussed above, and the unfavorable impact of changes in results from discontinued operations.

Loss from Discontinued Operations, Net of Income Taxes. The unfavorable change in results from discontinued
operations for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year was driven by Patriot bankruptcy related
charges associated with black lung liabilities and the UMW A Combined Benefit Fund totaling $132.5 million. Results
for the year ended December 31, 2015 also reflected a $34.7 million charge related to credit support that we provide to
Patriot and a contingent loss accrual of $9.7 million associated with the Queensland Bulk Handling Pty Ltd. litigation.
Those matters are discussed further in Note 27. "Matters Related to the Bankruptcy of Patriot Coal Corporation" and
Note 26. "Commitments and Contingencies" to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Diluted EPS

The following table presents diluted EPS for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Year Ended Decrease

December 31, to EPS

2015 2014 $ %
Diluted EPS attributable to common stockholders:
Loss from continuing operations $(98.65 ) $(39.51) $(59.14) (149.7)%
Loss from discontinued operations (9.64 ) (1.57 ) (8.07 ) (514.0)%
Net loss $(108.29) $(41.08) $(67.21) (163.6)%

Diluted EPS declined in the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year commensurate with the
unfavorable change in results from continuing and discontinued operations between those periods.

Outlook

Our near-term outlook is intended to coincide with the next 12 to 24 months, with subsequent periods addressed in our
long-term outlook.

Near-Term Outlook

U.S. Thermal Coal. U.S. domestic electricity generation increased as a result of above-average cooling degree days,
which along with increasing natural gas prices since March, positively impacted utility coal consumption and resulted
in larger than normal stockpile drawdowns. U.S. coal prices have strengthened with prompt Powder River Basin
(PRB) 8,800 Btu/Lb coal prices reaching $12.10 per ton as of December 31, 2016, up 17% year-to-date. As of March
16, 2017, the PRB 8,800 Btu/Lb coal prompt price was $11.35.
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Peabody projects U.S. utility coal consumption to increase approximately 50 to 70 million tons in 2017 versus 2016,
driven by higher natural gas prices and improved competitiveness of coal-fired electric generation. Peabody expects
U.S. thermal coal supply and demand to continue to rebalance in 2017 as natural gas prices increase, coal
consumption grows, exports stabilize and stockpile drawdowns continue. If natural gas prices are lower than projected
in 2017, coal consumption will likely decrease relative to expectations.

Seaborne Thermal Coal. Seaborne thermal coal demand rose in the second half of 2016 resulting from increased
import demand from China but has declined in recent months as China production increased following the
government’s easing of production policy restrictions. Newcastle index thermal coal spot pricing reached its highest
level since early 2012 at $114.75 in November, and was $88.40 per tonne as of December 31, 2016, up $37.80 per
tonne (75%) year-over-year. Higher China import demand was primarily the result of stronger electricity generation,
improved industrial demand and reduced domestic coal supply largely driven by restrictive policies. Seaborne demand
growth outside of China has been relatively weak, as evidenced by reduced imports into India. As of March 16, 2017,
the Newcastle index thermal coal spot price was $81.10.

Following the strong surge in prices, China relaxed production restrictions multiple times. In addition, recent price
levels have incentivized exporting producers to increase production and export supply. A key driver for future
seaborne thermal coal supply and demand balance is the outlook for China import demand, which remains uncertain
and is expected to be dependent in part on the sustainability and enforcement of China’s domestic production policy.
Seaborne Metallurgical Coal. Supply tightness and increased seaborne import demand have resulted in sharply higher
seaborne high quality hard coking coal prices in the second half of 2016. Domestic supply declines in China
accelerated during the year largely due to policy restrictions, which along with reduced coal supplies from Australia
and other key exporting countries drove spot pricing to $310 per tonne in November, its highest level since May 2011.
Hard coking coal spot pricing was at $230 per tonne on December 31, 2016, up 201% year-to-date. Seaborne
metallurgical coal prices for high quality hard coking coal and low-vol PCI settled at $285 and $180 per tonne,
respectively, for quarterly contracts commencing in January 2017, increasing 43% and 35% percent, respectively,
versus prior-quarter price levels. As of March 16, 2017, the hard coking coal and low-vol PCI coal spot prices were
$159.75 and $107.75, respectively.

Similar to thermal, China’s domestic metallurgical coal production is expected to increase due to relaxed policy on
production curtailments. While the impact remains uncertain, such policy changes could lead to reduced coal imports
by China.

Long-Term Outlook

As part of its normal planning and forecasting process, Peabody utilizes a bottom-up approach to develop
macroeconomic assumptions for key variables, including country level GDP, industrial production, fixed asset
investment and third-party inputs, driving detailed supply and demand projections. This includes key demand centers
for coal, generation and steel, while cost curves concentrate on major supply regions/countries that impact the regions
in which the Company operates.

Our estimates involve risks and uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors.

Seaborne Fundamentals

In 2016, seaborne coal prices rose from multi-year lows in the first half of the year to multi-year highs in later months
as supply and demand fundamentals improved on strong import demand in China. During 2016, China thermal coal
imports increased approximately 22% as compared to 2015, while metallurgical coal imports increased approximately
25% as compared to 2015, driven by domestic production policy restrictions and increased steel production.

Looking ahead, Peabody projects seaborne coal fundamentals to trend higher through 2021. In seaborne metallurgical
coal, demand is forecast by Peabody to increase 30 to 35 million tonnes, or 10% — 15%, from 2016 to 2021. Growth in
metallurgical coal demand is expected to be led by India, with an increase of approximately 25 million tonnes, which
we expect could become the largest importer of seaborne metallurgical coal over this period. Longer-term
metallurgical coal pricing is expected by Peabody to retreat to more stable levels, driven by expected China policies
restricting supply and the response from seaborne suppliers.

In seaborne thermal coal, demand is expected by Peabody to rise modestly by 25 to 35 million tonnes from 2016
through 2021 as new generation capacity comes on line. Approximately 375 gigawatts of new gross coal capacity are
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expected by Peabody to be added by 2021. More than 85% of this projected increase is expected to be concentrated in
the Asia-Pacific region as Association of Southeast Asian Nations capacity is forecasted by Peabody to surge
approximately 75% over the period. Approximately 180 gigawatts are expected by Peabody to be added in China, 64
gigawatts added in India, 72 gigawatts added in other Asian countries and the remainder across the rest of the world.
The majority of new capacity is projected by Peabody to be ultra or supercritical boiler types as part of a transition to
a lower carbon-emitting coal fleet. Peabody expects a shift toward enhanced boilers to result in stronger demand for
higher quality coal.

. 2016 Form
Peabody Energy Corporation 10-K/A 23

48



Edgar Filing: PEABODY ENERGY CORP - Form 424B3

Table of Contents

We believe Australia is well positioned to supply increased demand for both metallurgical and thermal coal, while
Colombia is also positioned to grow thermal coal exports. Due to the cyclical nature of the coal industry, supply and
demand fundamentals are subject to extreme fluctuations over time.
U.S. Fundamentals
In the U.S., coal demand rebounded in the second half of 2016 as natural gas prices rose sharply from the lowest
levels in approximately 15 years. Peabody expects 2017 coal consumption to rebound from 2016 levels on higher
natural gas prices. As a result, coal is projected by Peabody to fuel over 30% of U.S. electricity generation in 2017.
Longer term, Peabody forecasts U.S. coal consumption will decline 5 to 15 million tons between 2016 and 2021 as
expected coal plant retirements are largely offset by higher capacity utilization at remaining plants. Approximately 50
gigawatts of plant retirements are expected by Peabody over the period, and competition for coal in electric generation
from natural gas is expected to continue given low natural gas production costs and sufficient reserves.
By 2021, Peabody expects coal to supply an estimated 29% of U.S. electricity generation, down from approximately
30% in 2016. Coal from the PRB and Illinois Basin (ILB) is expected to remain most competitive on average against
natural gas based on delivered fuel costs. By 2021, the PRB and ILB are projected by Peabody to supply nearly 55%
of U.S. coal compared to approximately 51% in 2016. In addition, we believe PRB coal prices will improve over the
period while ILB prices will stabilize. Key variables impacting stockpiles and prices included GDP, weather,
renewables and gas exports. The economics of coal pricing and volume remain highly sensitive to natural gas prices.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview
Our primary sources of cash are proceeds from the sale of our coal production to customers. We have also generated
cash from the sale of non-strategic assets, including coal reserves and surface lands. Our primary uses of cash include
the cash costs of coal production, capital expenditures, coal reserve lease and royalty payments, debt service costs,
capital and operating lease payments, postretirement plans, take-or-pay obligations and post-mining retirement
obligations. Historically, we have also generated cash from borrowings under our credit facilities and, from time to
time, the issuance of securities.
Total Indebtedness. Our total indebtedness as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 consisted of the following:

December 31,

2016 2015
(Dollars in
millions)
2013 Revolver $1,558.1 $—
2013 Term Loan Facility due September 2020 1,154.5 1,156.3
6.00% Senior Notes due November 2018 1,509.9 1,508.9
6.50% Senior Notes due September 2020 645.8 645.5
6.25% Senior Notes due November 2021 1,327.7 1,327.0
10.00% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due March 2022 962.3 960.4
7.875% Senior Notes due November 2026 245.9 245.8
Convertible Junior Subordinated Debentures due December 2066 367.1 366.3
Capital lease obligations 19.7 30.3
Other 0.4 0.7
7,791.4 6,241.2
Less: Current portion of long-term debt 20.2 5,874.9
Less: Liabilities subject to compromise 77712 —
Long-term debt $— $366.3

Refer to Note 14. "Current and Long-term Debt" to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further
information regarding our indebtedness.
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Liquidity After Filing Under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code

As of December 31, 2016, our available liquidity was $872.3 million, which was comprised of cash and cash
equivalents. Of the $872.3 million of liquidity, $394.5 million was held by Debtor entities. Peabody is limited in its
ability to transfer funds between Debtor and non-debtor entities or between certain non-debtor entities by court order,
and, in certain instances, Peabody must first seek the approval of the Bankruptcy Court to make such transfers.
During the first quarter of 2016, we borrowed $947.0 million under the $1.65 billion revolving credit facility (as
amended, the 2013 Revolver) for general corporate purposes. As a result of filing the Bankruptcy Petitions on April
13, 2016, we are in default under the 2013 Credit Facility and as such the 2013 Revolver can no longer be utilized.
As of the Petition Date, we had approximately $675 million letters of credit outstanding under the 2013 Revolver.
Subsequent to the Petition Date, certain counterparties drew on a portion of those letters of credit. The letters of credit
were in place to support various types of obligations, though the most significant items related to bank guarantees in
place for reclamation bonding requirements in Australia. The draws required the recording of previously off-balance
sheet liabilities, except in certain instances where we had previously recorded a liability, and as such have been
reflected as additional borrowings under the 2013 Revolver. The total of such letters of credit drawn was $611.1
million during the year ended December 31, 2016. "Investments and other assets" in the consolidated balance sheets
as of December 31, 2016 includes $479.3 million of cash collateral in support of certain of these obligations.

Subject to certain exceptions under the Bankruptcy Code, the filing of the Bankruptcy Petitions automatically
enjoined, or stayed, the continuation of any judicial or administrative proceedings or other actions against the Debtors
or their property to recover, collect or secure a claim arising prior to the filing of the Bankruptcy Petitions. Thus, for
example, most creditor actions to obtain possession of property from the Debtors, or to create, perfect or enforce any
lien against the Debtors' property, or to collect on monies owed or otherwise exercise rights or remedies with respect
to a prepetition claim are enjoined unless and until the Bankruptcy Court lifts the automatic stay.

The Bankruptcy Court has approved payment of certain prepetition obligations, including payments for employee
wages, salaries and certain other benefits, customer programs, taxes, utilities and certain payments of insurance,
essential suppliers, possessory lien vendors and surety bond issuers. Despite the liquidity provided by our existing
cash on hand and cash from operations, our ability to maintain normal credit terms with our suppliers may become
impaired. We have been and may continue to be required to pay cash in advance to certain vendors and may
experience restrictions on the availability of trade credit, which would further reduce our liquidity. Our suppliers
could refuse to provide key products and services if we are unable to reach an agreement on credit terms. In addition,
due to the public perception of our financial condition and results of operations, in particular with regard to our
potential failure to meet our debt obligations, some customers could be reluctant to enter into long-term agreements
with us or may seek to terminate or modify their contracts with us.

We have incurred and expect to continue to incur significant costs associated with the Chapter 11 Cases and our
reorganization, but we cannot accurately predict the effect the Chapter 11 Cases will have on our operations, liquidity,
financial position and results of operations. We believe that our cash on hand and cash generated from the results of
our operations will be sufficient to fund anticipated cash requirements through the Chapter 11 Cases for minimum
operating and capital expenditures and for working capital purposes. However, given the current level of volatility in
the market and the unpredictability of certain costs that could potentially arise in our mining operations, our liquidity
needs could be significantly higher than we currently anticipate.

Our ability to maintain adequate liquidity through the reorganization process and beyond depends on our ability to
successfully implement a plan of reorganization, operate our business, and manage our operating expenses and capital
spending. Our anticipated liquidity needs are highly sensitive to changes in each of these and other factors. Refer to
Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a discussion of the risks associated with our
liquidity after the filing of our Chapter 11 Cases.
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Superpriority Secured Debtor-In-Possession Credit Agreement

On the Petition Date, the Debtors filed a motion (the DIP Motion) seeking authorization to use cash collateral and to
approve financing (the DIP Financing) under that certain Superpriority Secured Debtor-In-Possession Credit
Agreement (the DIP Credit Agreement) by and among Peabody as borrower, Peabody Global Funding, LLC, formerly
known as the Global Center for Energy and Human Development and certain Debtors party thereto as guarantors (the
Guarantors and together with the Company, the Loan Parties), the lenders party thereto (the DIP Lenders) and
Citibank, N.A. as Administrative Agent (in such capacity, the DIP Agent) and L/C Issuer. The DIP Credit Agreement
provided for (i) a term loan not to exceed $500 million (the DIP Term Loan Facility), of which $200 million was
made available upon entry of an interim order, the remaining $300 million pending the entry of the final order
approving the DIP Credit Agreement (the Final Order), secured by substantially all of the assets of the Loan Parties,
subject to certain excluded assets and carve outs and guaranteed by the Loan Parties (other than the Company), which
would be used for working capital and general corporate purposes, to cash collateralize letters of credit and to pay fees
and expenses, (ii) a cash collateralized letter of credit facility in an amount up to $100 million (the L/C Facility), and
(iii) a bonding accommodation facility in an amount up to $200 million consisting of (x) a carve-out from the
collateral with superpriority claim status, subject only to the fees carve-out, entitling the authority making any
bonding request to receive proceeds of collateral first in priority before distribution to any DIP Lender or other
prepetition secured creditor, except for letters of credit issued under the DIP Credit Agreement and/or (y) a letter of
credit facility (the Bonding L/C Facility). The aggregate face amount of all letters of credit issued under the L/C
Facility and the Bonding L/C Facility could not at any time exceed $50 million without DIP Lender consent.

On April 15, 2016, the Bankruptcy Court issued an order approving the DIP Motion on an interim basis and
authorizing the Loan Parties to, among other things, (i) enter into the DIP Credit Agreement and initially borrow up to
$200 million, (ii) obtain a cash collateralized letter of credit facility in the aggregate amount of up to $100 million,
and (iii) establish an accommodation facility for bonding requests in an aggregate stated amount of up to $200 million
under the DIP Term Loan Facility. On April 18, 2016, we entered into the DIP Credit Agreement with the DIP
Lenders and borrowed $200 million under the DIP Term Loan Facility. On May 17, 2016, the Bankruptcy Court
approved the DIP Financing on a final basis and entered an order to that effect on May 18, 2016. On May 19, 2016,
following entry of the Final Order, we borrowed the remaining $300 million available under the DIP Term Loan
Facility. We paid aggregate debt issuance costs of $26.8 million during the year ended December 31, 2016 related to
the DIP Term Loan Facility.

On December 14, 2016, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order authorizing the repayment of the DIP Term Loan
Facility prior to its scheduled maturity date and on December 15, 2016, we repaid the DIP Term Loan Facility in full.
Upon making this payment, our obligations under the DIP Credit Agreement were satisfied in full and it was
terminated. In connection with the repayment and termination, we incurred a loss on the early debt extinguishment of
$29.5 million, consisting of a $10.0 million early-termination fee and $19.5 million related to the write-off of
unamortized deferred financing costs and an original issue discount.

Accounts Receivable Securitization Program

On March 25, 2016, we amended and restated our accounts receivable securitization program (securitization program)
to, among other things, extend the term of the program by two years to March 23, 2018 and reduce the maximum
availability under the facility from $275.0 million to $180.0 million. The accessible capacity of the program varies
daily, dependent upon the actual amount of receivables available for contribution and various reserves and limits. As
of December 31, 2016, $40.5 million was deposited in a collateral account to secure letters of credit.

With the approval of the Bankruptcy Court, we executed two additional amendments to the March 25, 2016
securitization agreement during the second quarter of 2016. These amendments permit the continuation of the
securitization program through our Chapter 11 Cases, change the maturity date to the earlier of March 23, 2018 or the
emergence of the Debtors from the Chapter 11 Cases, revise the associated fees and enter into an additional
performance guarantee by our subsidiaries that are contributors under the securitization facility to fulfill the
obligations of the other contributors.

On January 27, 2017, the Company and P&L Receivables Company, LLC (P&L Receivables) obtained a commitment
letter (Commitment Letter) from PNC Bank, National Association (PNC), pursuant to which, in connection with the
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consummation of the proposed Plan, PNC has agreed to amend the existing securitization facility evidenced by the
Fifth Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2016 (as amended prior to the
date hereof), among P&L Receivables, as the seller, the Company, as the servicer, the sub-servicers party thereto, the
various purchasers and purchaser agents party thereto and PNC, as administrator, in order to, among other things, (i)
increase the purchase limit to an amount not to exceed $250.0 million (the Purchase Limit), (ii) extend the facility
termination date, and (iii) add certain Australian subsidiaries of the Company as originators (as so amended, the Sixth
Amended Securitization Facility).

The commitment of PNC to provide 100% of the Purchase Limit under the Sixth Amended Securitization Facility is
subject to certain conditions set forth in the Commitment Letter, including but not limited to the occurrence or waiver
of all conditions precedent to the effectiveness of the Plan.
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The Commitment Letter will terminate upon the occurrence of certain events described therein. The outside
termination date for the Commitment Letter is May 1, 2017.

On January 27, 2017, the Debtors filed a motion with the Bankruptcy Court seeking authorization to enter into and
perform under the Commitment Letter. On February 15, 2017, the Bankruptcy Court issued an order authorizing the
Company’s entry into and performance under the Commitment Letter.

Exit Financing

On January 11, 2017, the Debtors obtained an exit facility commitment letter (Exit Facility Commitment Letter) from
a consortium of lenders (Lenders), pursuant to which, in connection with the consummation of the Plan, the Lenders
have agreed to provide a senior secured term loan facility (Term Loan Facility) in an aggregate amount of (a) $1.5
billion, less (b) the aggregate principal amount of privately placed debt securities (Notes) of the Company, or special
purpose escrow issuer, issued on or prior to the closing date of the Term Loan Facility (Closing Date), plus (c) any
amount of additional senior secured term loans funded on the Closing Date at the sole discretion of the Term Loan
Facility's arranging Lenders and the Company.

The commitments of the Lenders to provide the Term Loan Facility are subject to the occurrence or waiver of all
conditions precedent to the effectiveness of the Plan, other than the closing and funding of the Term Loan Facility
(and the Notes issued in lieu thereof, if any). The Lenders’ commitments to provide and arrange the Term Loan
Facility will terminate on a dollar-for-dollar basis to the extent of the issuance of the Notes.

On February 8, 2017, the Company announced the pricing of a $950.0 million senior secured term loan. The term loan
will mature in 2022 and bear interest at a fluctuating rate of LIBOR plus 4.50% per annum, with a 1.00% LIBOR
floor. The closing of the term loan is expected to occur in early April 2017, concurrent with the Plan Effective Date
and subject to customary closing conditions and final documentation. The proceeds from the term loan will be used to
fund a portion of the distributions to creditors provided for under the Plan.

Also on February 8, 2017, the Company announced that a special purpose wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
priced an offering of $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.000% senior secured notes due 2022 and $500.0
million aggregate principal amount of 6.375% senior secured notes due 2025, each exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The offering of the notes closed on February 15, 2017 at
which time the net proceeds of the offering were funded into an escrow account pending the Plan Effective Date. The
notes were offered by a special purpose wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. If certain conditions are satisfied
on or before August 1, 2017, the net proceeds from the offering will be released from escrow to fund a portion of the
distributions to creditors provided for under the Plan, and the Company will become the obligor under the notes.
Capital Requirements

Additions to Property, Plant, Equipment and Mine Development. Additions to property, plant, equipment and mine
development during the year ended December 31, 2016 included expenditures associated with the extension of our
Twentymile Mine in the U.S. and expenditures to sustain production across our operating platform.

In response to the challenging global environment, we have sought to maintain a controlled, disciplined approach to
capital spending in order to preserve liquidity. In 2016, our additions to property, plant, equipment and mine
development of $126.6 million were comparable to the prior year. For 2017, we are again targeting a tightly controlled
capital expenditure level of $160 million to $190 million. We plan to defer significant growth and development
projects across our global platform to time periods beyond 2017 and will continue to evaluate the timing associated
with those projects based on changes in global coal supply and demand.

Coal Lease Expenditures. Federal coal lease expenditures, which pertain to U.S. federal coal reserves we lease from
the U.S. Bureau of Land Management in support of our Powder River Basin Mining and Western U.S. Mining
segment operations, amounted to $249.0 million in 2016. The 2016 expenditures primarily consisted of our final
required payments on our current leases in the Powder River Basin. We currently anticipate that our annual federal
coal lease expenditures will total approximately $1 million in 2017. In January 2016, the Secretary of the Interior
ordered a three-year pause on new leases for coal mined on federal land as part of a review of the federal coal leasing
program.

Settlement Agreement with the UMWA 1974 Pension Plan (UMWA Plan). On January 25, 2017, the UMWA Plan
and the Debtors agreed to a settlement of the UMWA Plan's claim whereby the UMWA Plan will be entitled to $75
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million to be paid by the Company as follows: $5 million on the Plan Effective Date, $10 million paid 90 days
subsequent to that date, $15 million paid one year later and $15 million per year for the following three years. On
March 15, 2017, the Debtors filed with the Bankruptcy Court a notice of settlement between the Debtors and the
UMWA Plan.

Refer to Note 27. "Matters Related to the Bankruptcy of Patriot Coal Corporation” to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for additional information surrounding the settlement agreement.
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Pension Contributions. Annual contributions to qualified plans are made in accordance with minimum funding
standards and our agreement with the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation. Funding decisions also consider certain
funded status thresholds defined by the Pension Protection Act of 2006 (generally 80%). During the year ended
December 31, 2016, we contributed $0.5 million and $0.6 million to our qualified and non-qualified pension plans,
respectively. We expect to contribute approximately $5.9 million to our pension plans to meet minimum funding
requirements for our qualified plans and benefit payments for our non-qualified plans in 2017. Contributions to
non-qualified plans ceased subsequent to April 12, 2016 as a result of filing the Bankruptcy Petitions.

Historical Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, as reported in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements:

Year Ended Increase (Decrease)

to
December 31, Cash Flow
2016 2015  $ %
(Dollars in millions)
Net cash used in operating activities $(52.8) $(14.4) $(38.4) (266.7 Y%
Net cash used in investing activities (244.1 ) (290.0 ) 45.9 158 %
Net cash provided by financing activities 907.9 2677 640.2 239.1 %
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 611.0 (36.7 ) 647.7 1,764.9 %
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 261.3 298.0 (36.7 ) (123 )%
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $872.3 $261.3 $611.0 2338 %

Operating Activities. The decrease in net cash used in operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2016
compared to the prior year was driven by the following:
A reduction in the amount drawn on our accounts receivable securitization program ($307.0 million);
Funds that became restricted during the year as collateral for financial assurances associated with reclamation bonding
requirements ($125.7 million); partially offset by
A year-over-year increase in working capital ($253.3 million); and
An increase associated with the reclassification from other comprehensive income for terminated hedge contracts that
occurred in 2016 ($125.2 million).
Investing Activities. The favorable change in cash results from investing activities for the year ended December 31,
2016 compared to the prior year was mainly due to:
Higher proceeds from disposals of assets ($74.0 million) primarily due to the sale of our 5.06% participation
interest in the Prairie State Energy Campus, as well as our interest in undeveloped metallurgical reserve
tenements in Queensland's Bowen Basin, which included the Olive Downs South, Olive Downs South
Extended and Willunga tenements; and
Lower federal coal lease expenditures ($28.2 million); partially offset by
Lower net proceeds from debt and equity security investment transactions ($61.5 million) due primarily to the fourth
guarter 2015 sale of debt securities and the second quarter 2015 divestment of our prior holdings of Winsway
Enterprises Holdings Limited marketable equity securities.
Financing Activities. The increase in net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2016
compared to the prior year was reflective of:
Higher proceeds from long-term debt ($454.1 million), primarily due to the proceeds received from our DIP Term
Loan Facility during the second quarter of 2016 ($475.0 million, net of original issue discount) and the net draws on
our 2013 Revolver during the first quarter of 2016 ($947.0 million), partially offset by proceeds received from our
Senior Secured Second Lien Notes ($975.7 million, net of original issue discount) during the first quarter of 2015; and
Lower repayments of long-term debt ($157.6 million), mainly due to the extinguishment of $650.0 million aggregate
principal of our 2016 Senior Notes in the first quarter of 2015, offset by the repayment of the DIP Term Loan Facility
($500.0 million) in the fourth quarter of 2016.
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Contractual Obligations
The following is a summary of our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2016:

Payments Due By Year

Less .3 4.5 More
Total than Years Years than

1 Year 5 Years

(Dollars in millions)
Long-term debt obligations (principal and interest) () $9,377.6 $490.2 $2,363.8 $2,343.9 $4,179.7

Capital lease obligations (principal and interest) 27.3 7.3 9.4 1.0 9.6
Operating lease obligations® 372.9 148.7 1606  37.0 26.6
Unconditional purchase obligations® 7.4 7.4 — — —

Coal reserve lease and royalty obligations 53.8 6.1 10.9 10.2 26.6
Take-or-pay obligations) 1,596.9 2099 3797 2347  772.6
Other long-term liabilities® 3,240.6  239.1 339.7 4372 2,224.6
Total contractual cash obligations $14,676.5 $1,108.7 $3,264.1 $3,064.0 $7,239.7

Represents the original contractual maturities of our long-term debt obligations, although $7.8 billion of debt is
classified as liabilities subject to compromise as a result of our Chapter 11 Cases. The related interest on long-term

(1) debt was calculated using rates in effect at December 31, 2016 for the remaining contractual term of the
outstanding borrowings. The above table does not include indebtedness expected to be incurred in connection with
the Plan.

«2) Excludes contingent rents. Refer to Note 15. "Leases” to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for
additional discussion of contingent rental agreements.

We routinely enter into purchase agreements with approved vendors for most types of operating expenses in the
ordinary course of business. Our specific open purchase orders (which have not been recognized as a liability)

(3) under these purchase agreements, combined with any other open purchase orders, are not material and though they
are considered enforceable and legally binding, the related terms generally allow us the option to cancel,
reschedule or adjust our requirements based on our business needs prior to the delivery of goods or performance of
services. Accordingly, the commitments in the table above relate to orders to suppliers for capital purchases.

) Represents various short- and long-term take or pay arrangements in Australia and the U.S. associated with rail and
port commitments for the delivery of coal, including amounts relating to export facilities.

Represents long-term liabilities relating to our postretirement benefit plans, work-related injuries and illnesses,
defined benefit pension plans, mine reclamation and end of mine closure costs and exploration obligations. Also

(5) Includes $13 million of required payments to the VEBA established in connection with Patriot's bankruptcy, as
well as $75 million related to the settlement of the UMWA 1974 Pension Plan Litigation described in Note 27.
"Matters Related to the Bankruptcy of Patriot Coal Corporation” to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

We do not expect any of the $20.1 million of net unrecognized tax benefits reported in our consolidated financial

statements to require cash settlement within the next year. Beyond that, we are unable to make reasonably reliable

estimates of periodic cash settlements with respect to such unrecognized tax benefits.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, we are a party to guarantees and financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk,

most of which are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. As of August 14, 2017, we do not

expect any material losses to result from these guarantees or off-balance-sheet instruments in excess of liabilities

already provided for in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2016. However, we could experience a

decline in our liquidity as financial assurances associated with reclamation bonding requirements, bank guarantees,

surety bonds or other obligations are required to be collateralized by cash or letters of credit.

Guarantees and Other Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk. See Note 25. "Financial Instruments,

Guarantees with Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Other Guarantees" to our consolidated financial statements for a

58



Edgar Filing: PEABODY ENERGY CORP - Form 424B3

discussion of our accounts receivable securitization program and guarantees and other financial instruments with
off-balance sheet risk.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and capital resources is based
upon our financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. We are also required under
U.S. GAAP to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates.
We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. We evaluate our long-lived assets used in operations for impairment as events and
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets might not be recoverable. Factors that
would indicate potential impairment to be present include, but are not limited to, a sustained history of operating or
cash flow losses, an unfavorable change in earnings and cash flow outlook, prolonged adverse industry or economic
trends and a significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which a long-lived asset is being used or in its
physical condition. We generally do not view short-term declines in thermal and metallurgical coal prices as a
triggering event for conducting impairment tests because of historic price volatility. However, we view a sustained
trend of depressed coal pricing (for example, over periods exceeding one year) as an indicator of potential impairment.
Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are identifiable cash flows that are largely independent of the
cash flows of other groups of assets. For our active mining operations, we generally group such assets at the mine
level, or the mining complex level for mines that share infrastructure, with the exception of impairment evaluations
triggered by mine closures. In those cases involving mine closures, the related assets are evaluated at the individual
asset level for transferability to ongoing operating sites, remaining economic life for use in reclamation-related
activities or for expected salvage. For our development and exploration properties and portfolio of surface land and
coal reserve holdings, we consider several factors to determine whether to evaluate those assets individually or on a
grouped basis for purposes of impairment testing. Such factors include geographic proximity to one another, the
expectation of shared infrastructure upon development based on future mining plans and whether it would be most
advantageous to bundle such assets in the event of a sale to a third party.

When indicators of impairment are present, we evaluate our long-lived assets used in operations for recoverability by
comparing the estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by those assets under various assumptions
to their carrying amounts. If such undiscounted cash flows indicate that the carrying value of the asset group is not
recoverable, impairment losses are measured by comparing the estimated fair value of the asset group to its carrying
amount. As quoted market prices are unavailable for our individual mining operations, fair value is determined
through the use of an expected present value technique based on the income approach, except for non-strategic coal
reserves, surface lands and undeveloped coal properties excluded from our long-range mine planning. In those cases, a
market approach is utilized based on the most comparable market multiples available. The estimated future cash flows
and underlying assumptions used to assess recoverability and, if necessary, measure the fair value of our long-lived
assets are derived from those developed in connection with our planning and budgeting process. We believe our
assumptions are consistent with those a market participant would use for valuation purposes. The most critical
assumptions underlying our projections include those surrounding future coal prices for unpriced coal, production
costs (including costs for labor, commodity supplies and contractors), transportation costs, foreign currency exchange
rates and a risk-adjusted, after-tax cost of capital (all of which generally constitute unobservable Level 3 inputs under
the fair value hierarchy), in addition to market multiples for non-strategic coal reserves, surface lands and
undeveloped coal properties excluded from our long-range mine planning (which generally constitute Level 3 inputs
under the fair value hierarchy).

Impairment of long-lived assets included in continuing operations was $247.9 million for the year ended December
31, 2016. The assumptions used are based on our best knowledge at the time we prepare our analysis but can vary
significantly due to changes in coal supply and demand, regulatory issues, unforeseen mining conditions, commodity
prices and cost of labor. These types of changes may cause us to be unable to recover all or a portion of the carrying
value of our long-lived assets. Because of the volatile and cyclical nature of the international seaborne coal markets, it
is reasonably possible that seaborne metallurgical coal prices may not improve or decrease further in the near term,
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which, absent sufficient mitigation such as an offsetting reduction in our operating costs, may result in the need for
future adjustments to the carrying value of our long-lived mining assets. Our assets whose recoverability and values
are most sensitive to near-term pricing include certain Australian metallurgical and thermal assets and certain U.S.
coal properties being leased to unrelated mining companies under agreements that require royalties to be paid as the
coal is mined. Such assets had an aggregate carrying value of $1,407.3 million as of December 31, 2016. We
conducted a review of those assets for recoverability as of December 31, 2016 and determined that, other than the
charges described above, no further impairment charge was necessary as of that date.

See Note 4. "Asset Impairment" to our consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding
impairment charges.
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Income Taxes. We account for income taxes in accordance with accounting guidance which requires deferred tax
assets and liabilities be recognized using enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between the book
and tax bases of recorded assets and liabilities. The guidance also requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a
valuation allowance if it is “more likely than not” that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.
In our evaluation of the need for a valuation allowance, we take into account various factors, including the expected
level of future taxable income, available tax planning strategies, reversals of existing taxable temporary differences
and taxable income in carryback years. As of December 31, 2016, we had valuation allowances for income taxes
totaling $4,037.5 million. If actual results differ from the assumptions made in our annual evaluation of our valuation
allowance, we may record a change in valuation allowance through income tax expense in the period such
determination is made.
Our liability for unrecognized tax benefits contains uncertainties because management is required to make
assumptions and to apply judgment to estimate the exposures associated with our various filing positions. We
recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is “more likely than not” that the tax position will be
sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits
recognized in the financial statements from such a position must be measured based on the largest benefit that has a
greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. As of December 31, 2016, we had net
unrecognized tax benefits of $20.1 million included in recorded liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. We
believe that our judgments and estimates are reasonable; however, to the extent we prevail in matters for which
liabilities have been established, or are required to pay amounts in excess of our recorded liabilities, our effective tax
rate in a given period could be materially affected.
See Note 12. "Income Taxes" in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information
regarding valuation allowances and unrecognized tax benefits.
Postretirement Benefit and Pension Liabilities. We have long-term liabilities for our employees’ postretirement benefit
costs and defined benefit pension plans. Liabilities for postretirement benefit costs are not funded. Our pension
obligations are funded in accordance with the provisions of applicable laws. Expense for the year ended December 31,
2016 for postretirement benefit costs and pension liabilities totaled $79.8 million, while employer contributions were
$49.5 million.
Each of these liabilities is actuarially determined and we use various actuarial assumptions, including the discount
rate, future cost trends, demographic assumptions and expected asset returns to estimate the costs and obligations for
these items. Our discount rate is determined by utilizing a hypothetical bond portfolio model which approximates the
future cash flows necessary to service our liabilities. We make assumptions related to future trends for medical care
costs in the estimates of postretirement benefit costs. Our medical trend assumption is developed by annually
examining the historical trend of cost per claim data. In addition, we make assumptions related to rates of return on
plan assets in the estimates of pension obligations. If our assumptions do not materialize as expected, actual cash
expenditures and costs that we incur could differ materially from our current estimates. Moreover, regulatory changes
could affect our obligation to satisfy these or additional obligations.
For our postretirement benefit obligation, assumed discount rates and health care cost trend rates have a significant
effect on the expense and liability amounts reported for our health care plans. Below we have provided two separate
sensitivity analyses to demonstrate the significance of these assumptions in relation to reported amounts.

For Year Ended

December 31, 2016

O eI entage-

Point

Point Decrease
Increase

(Dollars in millions)
Health care cost trend rate:
Effect on total net periodic postretirement benefit cost $10.6 $ (9.3 )
Effect on total postretirement benefit obligation $67.0 $ (61.9 )
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Discount rate:

Effect on total net periodic postretirement benefit cost

Effect on total postretirement benefit obligation

Peabody Energy Corporation
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For Year Ended
December 31, 2016
One-HalOne-Half
Percentafercentage-
Point  Point
Increase Decrease
(Dollars in millions)

$23 )% 22
$(39.4) § 447
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For our pension obligation, assumed discount rates and expected returns on assets have a significant effect on the
expense and funded status amounts reported for our defined benefit pension plans. Below we have provided two
separate sensitivity analyses to demonstrate the significance of these assumptions in relation to reported amounts.
For Year Ended
December 31, 2016
One-HalDne-Half
Percentdgmrcentage-
Point Point
IncreaseDecrease
(Dollars in
millions)
Discount rate:
Effect on total net periodic pension cost $69) %74
Effect on defined benefit pension plans' funded status $48.0 $ (52.5 )

Expected return on assets:

Effect on total net periodic pension cost $3.8) $ 38

See Note 17. "Postretirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits" and Note 18. "Pension and Savings Plans" to
our consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding postretirement benefit and pension plans.
Asset Retirement Obligations. Our asset retirement obligations primarily consist of spending estimates for surface
land reclamation and support facilities at both surface and underground mines in accordance with applicable
reclamation laws in the U.S. and Australia as defined by each mining permit. Asset retirement obligations are
determined for each mine using various estimates and assumptions including, among other items, estimates of
disturbed acreage as determined from engineering data, estimates of future costs to reclaim the disturbed acreage and
the timing of these cash flows, discounted using a credit-adjusted, risk-free rate. As changes in estimates occur (such
as mine plan revisions, changes in estimated costs or changes in timing of the reclamation activities), the obligation
and asset are revised to reflect the new estimate after applying the appropriate credit-adjusted, risk-free rate. If our
assumptions do not materialize as expected, actual cash expenditures and costs that we incur could be materially
different than currently estimated. Moreover, regulatory changes could increase our obligation to perform reclamation
and mine closing activities. Asset retirement obligation expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016 were $41.8
million, and payments totaled $28.7 million. See Note 16. "Asset Retirement Obligations" to our consolidated
financial statements for additional information regarding our asset retirement obligations.

Fair Value Measurements of Financial Instruments. We evaluate the quality and reliability of the assumptions and
data used in our foreign currency forward and option contracts, commodity futures, swaps and options and physical
commodity purchase/sale contracts (collectively referred to as Instruments and Contracts) to measure fair value in the
three level hierarchy, Levels 1, 2 and 3. Level 3 fair value measurements are those where inputs are unobservable or
observable but cannot be market-corroborated, requiring us to make assumptions about pricing by market participants.
Generally, these Instruments and Contracts are valued using internally generated models that include forward pricing
curve quotes from one to three reputable brokers. Our valuation techniques also include basis adjustments for heat
rate, sulfur and ash content, port and freight costs, and credit risk. We validate our valuation inputs with third-party
information and settlement prices from other sources where available. We also consider credit and nonperformance
risk in the fair value measurement by analyzing the counterparty’s exposure balance, credit rating and average default
rate, net of any counterparty credit enhancements (e.g., collateral), as well as our own credit rating for financial
liability trading positions. Certain Instruments and Contracts include a credit valuation adjustment based on credit and
non-performance risk. If the relative value of the credit valuation adjustment to total fair value is greater than 10%, we
consider the adjustment to be an unobservable input. Thus, the Instrument or Contract is considered Level 3.

We have consistently applied these valuation techniques in all periods presented, and believe we have obtained the
most accurate information reasonably available for the types of Instruments and Contracts held. Valuation changes
from period to period for each level will increase or decrease depending on: (1) the relative change in fair value for
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positions held, (2) new positions added, (3) realized amounts for completed trades, and (4) transfers between levels.
Our strategies utilize various Instruments and Contracts. Periodic changes in fair value for purchase and sale positions
occur in each level and therefore, the overall change in value of our Instruments and Contracts requires consideration
of valuation changes across all levels.

At December 31, 2016 we had no Corporate Hedging Instruments and Contracts categorized as Level 3. See Note 8.
"Derivatives and Fair Value Measurements" to our consolidated financial statements for additional information
regarding fair value measurements of our net financial asset trading positions.
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At December 31, 2016, we had liabilities of $1.1 million of Coal Trading Instruments and Contracts categorized as
Level 3. See Note 9. "Coal Trading" to our consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding fair
value measurements of our net financial asset trading positions.

Contingent liabilities. From time to time, we are subject to legal and environmental matters related to our continuing
and discontinued operations and certain historical, non-coal producing operations. In connection with such matters, we
are required to assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes, as well as potential ranges of probable
losses.

A determination of the amount of reserves required for these matters is made after considerable analysis of each
individual issue. We accrue for legal and environmental matters within "Operating costs and expenses" when it is
probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. We provide
disclosure surrounding loss contingencies when we believe that it is at least reasonably possible that a material loss
may be incurred or an exposure to loss in excess of amounts already accrued may exist. Adjustments to contingent
liabilities are made when additional information becomes available that affects the amount of estimated loss, which
information may include changes in facts and circumstances, changes in interpretations of law in the relevant courts,
the results of new or updated environmental remediation cost studies and the ongoing consideration of trends in
environmental remediation costs.

Accrued contingent liabilities exclude claims against third parties and are not discounted. The current portion of these
accruals is included in “Accounts payables and accrued expenses” and the long-term portion is included in “Other
noncurrent liabilities” in our consolidated balance sheets. In general, legal fees related to environmental remediation
and litigation are charged to expense. We include the interest component of any litigation-related penalties within
"Interest expense” in our consolidated statements of operations. See Note 26. "Commitments and Contingencies" to
our accompanying consolidated financial statements for further discussion of our contingent liabilities.

Newly Adopted Accounting Standards and Accounting Standards Not Yet Implemented

See Note 1. "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" to our accompanying consolidated financial statements for
a discussion of newly adopted accounting standards and accounting standards not yet implemented.

Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

See Part IV, Item 15. "Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules" of this report for the information required by this
Item 8, which information is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to, among other things, provide reasonable assurance that
material information, both financial and non-financial, and other information required under the securities laws to be
disclosed is accumulated and communicated to senior management, including the principal executive officer and
principal accounting officer, on a timely basis. Because of inherent limitations, any system of internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As of December 31, 2016, the end of the period covered by the Original Filing of our Form 10-K, we carried out an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon that
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded our disclosure controls and procedures,
as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange
Act) as of December 31, 2016 were effective.

In connection with the correction of an immaterial error as discussed in the Explanatory Note to this Form 10-K/A
Amendment No. 2 and Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K/A
Amendment No. 2, management became aware of a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2016. As a result of this material weakness, described below, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2016.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
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We periodically review our internal control over financial reporting as part of our efforts to ensure compliance with
the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. In addition, we routinely review our system of
internal control over financial reporting to identify potential changes to our processes and systems that may improve
controls and increase efficiency, while ensuring that we maintain an effective internal control environment. Changes
may include such activities
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as implementing new systems, consolidating the activities of acquired business units, migrating certain processes to
our shared services organizations, formalizing and refining policies, procedures and control documentation
requirements, improving segregation of duties and adding monitoring controls. In addition, when we acquire new
businesses, we incorporate our controls and procedures into the acquired business as part of our integration activities.
Other than the identification of a material weakness as of December 31, 2016 discussed in Management’s Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting, there have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the three months ended December 31, 2016 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely
to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for maintaining and establishing adequate internal control over financial reporting. An
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our internal control over financial reporting, as defined
in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act, as of the end of the period covered by this report was
performed under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer. This evaluation is performed to determine if our internal controls over financial reporting
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of inherent limitations, any system of internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting using the
criteria set by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control -
Integrated Framework (2013) at the time the Original Filing was filed on March 22, 2017. Based on the assessment at
the time of the Original Filing, management concluded that as of December 31, 2016, our internal controls over
financial reporting were effective. Subsequent to this evaluation, management identified a material weakness existing
in our internal controls as of December 31, 2016 (described below).

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not
be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Management determined that the internal control around the reconciliation of tax basis balance sheets to deferred tax
balances was not designed effectively and did not operate at a sufficient level of precision to prevent or detect a
material misstatement on a timely basis. Specifically, an immaterial misstatement related to deferred tax liabilities of
a single taxpayer outside of the consolidated Australian tax paying group was identified, which resulted in the
understatement of the income tax valuation allowance required to reduce the carrying value of its deferred tax assets.
The Company has subsequently revised its financial statements and related disclosures to correct these errors.

The effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting has also been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report that is included herein.

Management’s Plans for Remediation

Management has been engaged and will continue to advance remedial activities to address the material weakness
described above. We believe the risk of a material weakness in subsequent periods will be mitigated by the application
of fresh start reporting, the implementation of an improved general ledger structure and a comprehensive analysis of
all deferred tax positions. Additionally we will revise and enhance the design of existing controls and procedures to
properly apply accounting principles in this area, which includes strengthening our income tax controls with improved
documentation standards, training and technical oversight.

The material weakness will not be considered fully remediated until the applicable remedial controls operate for a
sufficient period of time and management has concluded, through testing, that these controls are operating effectively.
We expect that the remediation of this material weakness will be completed prior to the end of fiscal year 2017.

Peabody Energy Corporation 34
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/s/ Glenn

Lis/ Amy B. Schwetz
Kellow

Glenn

L.

Kellow
PaasigdhtSchwetz
aBdecutive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Chief

Executive

Officer

August 14, 2017
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Peabody Energy Corporation

We have audited Peabody Energy Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016,
based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework), (the COSO criteria). Peabody Energy Corporation’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our report dated March 21, 2017, we expressed an unqualified opinion that Peabody Energy Corporation
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based
on the COSO criteria. Management has subsequently identified a deficiency in controls related to its reconciliation of
tax basis balance sheets to deferred tax balances, and has further concluded that such deficiency represented a material
weakness as of December 31, 2016. As a result, management has revised its assessment, as presented in the
accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting to conclude that Peabody Energy
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2016. Accordingly, our
present opinion on the effectiveness of Peabody Energy Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2016, as expressed herein, is different from that expressed in our previous report.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The following material weakness has been identified
and included in management's assessment. Management has identified a material weakness in controls related to the
Peabody Energy Corporation's reconciliation of tax basis balance sheets to deferred tax balances. We also have
audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Peabody Energy Corporation as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016. This material weakness was considered in determining the
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nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2016 consolidated financial statements, and this
report does not affect our report dated March 21, 2017, except for the effects of the revisions described in the section
entitled Correction of Prior Period Financial Information in Note 1 as to which the date is August 14, 2017, which
expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.
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In our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives of
the control criteria, Peabody Energy Corporation has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2016, based on the COSO criteria.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

St. Louis, Missouri

March 21, 2017, except for the effects of the material weakness described in the sixth paragraph above, as to which
the date is August 14, 2017
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PART III

PART IV

Item 15.Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Documents Filed as Part of the Report

(1) Financial Statements.

The following consolidated financial statements of Peabody Energy Corporation and the report thereon of the
independent registered public accounting firm are included herein on the pages indicated:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-1
Consolidated Statements of Operations — Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 F-2
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income — Years Ended December 31. 2016, 2015 and 2014 F-3
Consolidated Balance Sheets — December 31. 2016 and 2015 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity — Years Ended December 31. 2016, 2015 and 2014F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-8

(2) Financial Statement Schedules.
The following financial statement schedule of Peabody Energy Corporation is at the page indicated:

Page
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts F-98
All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the Securities and
Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions or are not applicable and, therefore, have been
omitted.
(3) Exhibits.
See Exhibit Index hereto.
Pursuant to the Instructions to Exhibits, certain instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt securities
of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries are not filed because the total amount of securities authorized under
any such instrument does not exceed 10% of the total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidated
basis. A copy of such instrument will be furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

PEABODY ENERGY CORPORATION

/s/ GLENN L. KELLOW

Glenn L. Kellow

President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: August 14, 2017
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Peabody Energy Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Peabody Energy Corporation (the Company) as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, changes
in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016. Our audits
also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and
schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Peabody Energy Corporation at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the consolidated results of its
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects the
information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of Peabody Energy Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2016, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework), and our report dated March 21, 2017, except for the
effects of the material weakness described in the sixth paragraph of that report, as to which the date is August 14,
2017, expressed an adverse opinion.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

St. Louis, Missouri

March 21, 2017, except for the effects of the revisions described in the section entitled Correction of Prior Period
Financial Information in Note 1, as to which the date is August 14, 2017
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PEABODY ENERGY CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in millions, except per share data)

2016
Revenues
Sales $ 4,117.9
Other revenues 597.4
Total revenues 4,715.3

Costs and expenses
Operating costs and
expenses (exclusive
of items shown
separately below)
Depreciation,
depletion and 465.4
amortization
Asset retirement
obligation expenses
Selling and
administrative 1534
expenses

Restructuring and
pension settlement 15.5
charges
Other operating
(income) loss:
Net gain on disposal
of assets
Asset impairment  247.9
(Gain) loss from

4,107.6

(23.2

equity affiliates (16.2
Operating loss (276.9
Interest expense 298.6
Lo§s on early debt 9.5
extinguishment

Interest income (5.7
Reorgamzauon 159.0
items, net

Loss from

continuing (758.3

operations before
income taxes
Income tax (benefit)

.. (94.5
provision
Loss from (663.8
continuing

2015

$ 5,138.3

470.9
5,609.2

5,007.7

572.2

45.5

176.4

23.5

(45.0
1,277.8
15.9

(1,464.8
4654

67.8
a7

(1,990.3

(207.1
(1,783.2

2014

$ 6,132.7
659.5
6,792.2

5,716.9

655.7

81.0

227.1

26.0

(41.4
154.4
107.6

(135.1
426.6

1.6
(154

(547.9

147.4
(695.3
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operations, net of
income taxes
Loss from
discontinued
operations, net of
income taxes

Net loss (7214

Less: Net income

attributable to

noncontrolling

interests

Net loss attributable

to common $ (729.3
stockholders

(57.6

7.9

Loss from
continuing
operations
Basic loss per share $ (36.72
Diluted loss per $ (36.72
share

Net loss attributable
to common
stockholders

Basic loss per share $ (39.87
Diluted loss per $ (39.87
share

Dividends declared
per share

$ —

(175.0

(1,958

7.1

$

2

(1,965.3

(98.65
(98.65

(108.29
(108.29

0.075

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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)

(28.2

(7235

9.7

(733.2

(39.51
(39.51

(41.08
(41.08

5.100
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PEABODY ENERGY CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net loss

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes:

Net change in unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities (net of respective tax
benefit of $0.0, $0.1 and $0.5)

Unrealized holding losses on available-for-sale securities

Reclassification for realized losses included in net loss

Net change in unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities

Net unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedges (net of respective tax provision
(benefit) of $85.9, $72.2 and ($54.6))

Decrease in fair value of cash flow hedges

Reclassification for realized losses (gains) included in net loss

Net unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedges

Postretirement plans and workers' compensation obligations (net of respective tax
(benefit) provision of ($1.5), $36.2 and ($10.3))

Prior service (cost) credit for the period

Net actuarial (loss) gain for the period

Amortization of actuarial loss and prior service cost included in net loss
Postretirement plans and workers' compensation obligations

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes

Comprehensive loss

Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Comprehensive loss attributable to common stockholders

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
(Dollars in millions)

$(721.4) $(1,958.2) $(723.5 )

— — 3.7 )
— — 29
— — 0.8 )

— (131.3 ) (195.0 )
146.3 251.7 (10.2 )
146.3 120.4 (2052 )

45 ) 104 11.4
(135 ) 18.1 1427 )
15.4 31.9 32.7
26 )604 (98.6

)
1.8 ) (349 ) (41.0 )
141.9 145.9 (3456 )
(579.5 ) (1,812.3 ) (1,069.1 )
7.9 7.1 9.7

$(587.4) $(1,819.4) $(1,078.8)
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PEABODY ENERGY CORPORATION

(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,

2016

(Amounts in millions,
except per share data)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents  $
Restricted cash 54.3
Accounts receivable, net of
allowance for doubtful

accounts of $13.1 at 473.0
December 31, 2016 and $6.6

at December 31, 2015

Inventories 203.7
Assets from coal trading

.. 0.7
activities, net
Deferred income taxes —
Other current assets 486.6
Total current assets 2,090.6
Property, plant, equipment 8.776.7

and mine development, net
Deferred income taxes —
Investments and other assets 910.4
Total assets $
LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term $
debt

Liabilities from coal trading 12
activities, net ’
Accounts payable and

990.4
accrued expenses
Total current liabilities 1,011.8
Long-term debt, less current
portion o
Deferred income taxes 173.9

Asset retirement obligations 717.8
Accrupd postretirement 756.3
benefit costs

Other noncurrent liabilities  496.2
Total liabilities not subject to

. 3,156.0
compromise
L1ab111tle§ subject to 8.440.2
compromise
Total liabilities 11,596.2

872.3

11,777.7

20.2

2015

<5

261.3

228.8

307.8
235

535
447.6
1,322.5

9,258.5

2.2
363.7
$ 10,946.9

$ 5,874.9
15.6

1,446.3
7,336.8
366.3

2359
686.6

722.9
846.7
10,195.2

10,195.2
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Stockholders’ equity

Preferred Stock — $0.01 per

share par value; 10.0 shares

authorized, no shares issued

or outstanding as of

December 31, 2016 or

December 31, 2015

Perpetual Preferred Stock —

0.8 shares authorized, no

shares issued or outstanding — —
as of December 31, 2016 or
December 31, 2015

Series Common Stock — $0.01
per share par value;

40.0 shares authorized, no
shares issued or outstanding
as of December 31, 2016 or
December 31, 2015

Common Stock — $0.01 per
share par value; 53.3 shares
authorized, 19.3 shares

issued and 18.5 shares 0.2 0.2
outstanding as of

December 31, 2016 and

December 31, 2015

Additional paid-in capital 2,422.0 2,410.7
Treasury stock, at cost —

0.8 shares as of

December 31, 2016 and (371.8 ) (3717
December 31, 2015

Accumulated deficit (1,399.5 ) (670.2
Accumulated other 4770 ) (618.9

comprehensive loss

Peabody Energy Corporation
stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests 7.6 1.6
Total stockholders’ equity ~ 181.5 751.7
Total liabilities and

stockholders’ equity $ 1.777.7 $
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

173.9 750.1
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PEABODY ENERGY CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net loss

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes

Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes to net

cash (used in) provided by operating activities:

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

Noncash interest expense

Deferred income taxes

Noncash share-based compensation

Asset impairment

Net gain on disposal of assets

(Gain) loss from equity affiliates

Gain on voluntary employee beneficiary association settlement
Settlement of hedge positions

Reclassification from other comprehensive earnings for terminated hedge contracts

Noncash reorganization items, net
Changes in current assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Change in receivable from accounts receivable securitization program

Inventories

Net assets from coal trading activities

Other current assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Restricted cash

Asset retirement obligations

Workers’ compensation obligations

Accrued postretirement benefit costs

Accrued pension costs

Take-or-pay obligation settlement

Other, net

Net cash (used in) provided by continuing operations

Net cash used in discontinued operations

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Additions to property, plant, equipment and mine development
Changes in accrued expenses related to capital expenditures
Federal coal lease expenditures

Proceeds from disposal of assets, net of notes receivable
Purchases of debt and equity securities

Proceeds from sales and maturities of debt and equity securities
Contributions to joint ventures

Distributions from joint ventures

Year Ended December 31,

2016

2015

2014

(Dollars in millions)

$(721.4) $(1,958.2) $(723.5)

57.6

175.0

28.2

(663.8 ) (1,783.2 ) (695.3 )

4654
61.3
(97.0
12.8
2479
(23.2
(16.2
(68.1
(25.0
125.2
90.9

(101.3
(168.5
104.0
8.5
(24.4
156.5
(125.7
13.1
0.4
6.3
21.7
(15.5
(7.4
(22.9
(29.9
(52.8

(126.6
(6.1
(249.0
144.4

(309.5
312.4

572.2
30.6

) (138.3
28.2
1,277.8

) (45.0

) 15.9

) —

) (14.9

) 188.0
) 138.5
96.2
273
) 14.8
(381.7
) —
23.9
) 4.2
18.7
29.6
) —
) (209
) 18.9
) (333
) (144

) (126.8

) (9.2

) (277.2
70.4
(28.8
90.3

) (4254
422.6

655.7
23.6

) 178.1
46.8
154.4

) 414 )
107.6

) (136.9 )

554
(70.0 )
104.9

) (10.1 )
7.7

) 292 )
60.3

) 2.2
9.6
28.3

) (10.7 )
441.0

) (104.4 )

) 336.6

) (1944 )

) (16.6 )

) (276.7 )
203.7

) (15.1 )
13.5

) (5629.8 )
534.2
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Advances to related parties 404 ) 3.7 ) (33.7 )
Repayment of loans from related parties 40.6 0.9 54

Other, net (9.9 ) (3.1 ) (5.0 )
Net cash used in investing activities (244.1 ) (290.0 ) (3145 )

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 10-K/A F- 5
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PEABODY ENERGY CORPORATION

(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - (Continued)
Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014
(Dollars in millions)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Proceeds from long-term debt $1,458.4 $975.7 $1.1
Repayments of long-term debt (513.7 ) (671.3) (21.0 )
Payment of deferred financing costs (31.0 ) (28.7 ) (10.1 )
Dividends paid — (1.4 ) 923 )
Restricted cash for distributions to noncontrolling interests — — 425 )
Other, net (5.8 ) (6.6 ) B3 )
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 907.9 267.7 (168.1)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 611.0 (36.7 ) (146.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 261.3 298.0 4440
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $872.3  $261.3 $298.0

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 10-K/A F- 6
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PEABODY ENERGY CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Peabody Energy Corporation Stockholders’ Equity
Retained Accumulated

Comrﬁc&iﬁfﬂal Treasury Earnings Other Noncontrollilér‘%)ot §11<h01 ders’
Stock Capital Stock  (AccumulatedComprehensivaterests Equity
Deficit) Loss
(Dollars in millions)
December 31, 2013 $0.2 $2,342.6 $(464.7) $2,198.5 $4192 ) $ 392 $3,696.6
Net (loss) income — — — (733.2 ) — 9.7 (723.5 )
Net change in unrealized losses on
available-for-sale securities (net of
$0.5 tax benefit) - o o ©38 ) — ©38 )
Net unrealized losses on cash flow L o o (2052 )y — 2052 )

hedges (net of $54.6 tax benefit)
Postretirement plans and workers’
compensation obligations (net of — — — — (98.6 ) — (98.6 )
$10.3 tax benefit)

Foreign currency translation

adjustment - o o “1.0 ) — “1.0 )
Dividends paid — — — (92.3 ) — — (92.3 )
Sha.re—based. gompensatlon for 61 L o . . 46.1
equity-classified awards

Write-off of excess tax benefits

related to share-based compensation (8.3 ) — o o o 8.3 )
Stock options exercised — 05 — — — — 0.5
Employee stock purchases — 51 — — — — 5.1
Repurchase of employee common

stock relinquished for tax withholding 24 ) — o - (24 )
Distributions to noncontrolling

interests — — — — — 4.7 ) 4.7 )

Dividend payable to noncontrolling . _ _ (42.5 ) (425 )

interests
December 31, 2014 $0.2 $2,386.0 $(467.1) $1,373.0 $ (7648 ) $ 1.7 $2,529.0
Net (loss) income — — — (1,965.3 ) — 7.1 (1,958.2 )

Net change in unrealized losses on

available-for-sale securities (net of — — — — — — —
$0.1 tax benefit)

Net unrealized gains on cash flow
hedges (net of $72.2 tax provision)
Postretirement plans and workers’
compensation obligations (net of — — — — 60.4 — 60.4
$36.2 tax provision)
Fo‘reign currency translation o o o (34.9 )y — (34.9 )
adjustment

Dividends paid — — — (1.4 ) — — (1.4 )

—_ — — — 120.4 — 120.4
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Share-based compensation for

equity-classified awards — 262 o o o o 262
Employee stock purchases — 34 — — — — 34
Defmpd c?,ontrlbutlon plan share a4 ) 97.5 (76.5 ) — . 196
contribution

Purchase of interest of noncontrolling

stockholders — 63 ) — o o ©:5 ) 40
Repurchase of employee common 21 ) — . . @.1
stock relinquished for tax withholding ' '
Consolidation of noncontrolling o . o . 16 16
interests '

Dlstrlbutlons to noncontrolling o L o . 63 ) (63
interests

DlVldend payable to noncontrolling L o o 2.0 ) (2.0
interests

December 31, 2015 $0.2 $2,410.7 $(371.7) $(670.2 ) $(6189 ) $ 1.6 $751.7
Net (loss) income — — — (729.3 ) — 7.9 (7214
Net unrealized gains on cash flow o o o 1463 . 1463

hedges (net of $85.9 tax provision)
Postretirement plans and workers'
compensation obligations (net of $1.5— — — — (2.6 ) — (2.6
tax benefit)

Foreign currency translation

adjustment - o o (1.8 ) — (1.8
Share-based compensation for

. e — 113 — — — — 11.3
equity-classified awards
Repurchase of employee common 01 ) — o o .1
stock relinquished for tax withholding ’ '
Dlstrlbutlons to noncontrolling o o o o (1.9 ) (1.9
interests
December 31, 2016 $0.2 $2,422.0 $(371.8) $(1,399.5 ) $ 4770 ) $ 7.6 $181.5

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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PEABODY ENERGY CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1)Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Peabody Energy Corporation and its affiliates. The
Company, or Peabody, are used interchangeably to refer to Peabody Energy Corporation, to Peabody Energy
Corporation and its subsidiaries, or to such subsidiaries, as appropriate to the context. Interests in subsidiaries
controlled by the Company are consolidated with any outside stockholder interests reflected as noncontrolling
interests, except when the Company has an undivided interest in an unincorporated joint venture. In those cases, the
Company includes its proportionate share in the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the jointly controlled
entities within each applicable line item of the consolidated financial statements. All intercompany transactions,
profits and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. As discussed below in "Newly Adopted Accounting
Standards," prior year amounts of deferred financing costs have been reclassified to conform with the new standard.
Pursuant to the authorization provided at a special meeting of the Company's stockholders held on September 16,
2015, the Company completed a 1-for-15 reverse stock split of the shares of the Company’s common stock on
September 30, 2015 (the Reverse Stock Split). As a result of the Reverse Stock Split, every 15 shares of issued and
outstanding common stock were combined into one issued and outstanding share of Common Stock, without any
change in the par value per share. No fractional shares were issued as a result of the Reverse Stock Split and any
fractional shares that would otherwise have resulted from the Reverse Stock Split were paid in cash. The Reverse
Stock Split reduced the number of shares of common stock outstanding from approximately 278 million shares to
approximately 19 million shares. The number of authorized shares of common stock was also decreased from 800
million shares to 53.3 million shares. The Company's common stock began trading on a reverse stock split-adjusted
basis on October 1, 2015. All share and per share data included in this report has been retroactively restated to reflect
the Reverse Stock Split. Since the par value of the common stock remained at $0.01 per share, the value for "Common
stock" recorded to the Company's consolidated balance sheets has been retroactively reduced to reflect the par value
of restated outstanding shares, with a corresponding increase to "Additional paid-in capital."

The Company has classified items within discontinued operations in the audited consolidated financial statements for
disposals (by sale or otherwise) that have occurred prior to January 1, 2015 when the operations and cash flows of a
disposed component of the Company were eliminated from the ongoing operations of the Company as a result of the
disposal and the Company no longer had any significant continuing involvement in the operation of that component.
Description of Business

The Company is engaged in the mining of thermal coal for sale primarily to electric utilities and metallurgical coal for
sale to industrial customers. The Company’s mining operations are located in the United States (U.S.) and Australia,
including an equity-affiliate mining operation in Australia. The Company also markets and brokers coal from other
coal producers, both as principal and agent, and trades coal and freight-related contracts through trading and business
offices in Australia, China, Germany, the United Kingdom and the U.S. (listed alphabetically). The Company’s other
energy-related commercial activities include managing its coal reserve and real estate holdings and supporting the
development of clean coal technologies.

Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 10-K/A F- 8
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PEABODY ENERGY CORPORATION

(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Correction of Prior Period Financial Information

Subsequent to the Original Filing of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, an error
was identified that impacted previously reported results. When determining whether a valuation allowance was
required to reduce the deferred tax assets of one of its tax paying components to an amount that was more likely than
not to be realized, the Company inappropriately considered the future reversal of existing temporary differences from
another tax paying component as a source of taxable income. The initial error occurred in 2013 and resulted in a
$251.3 million understatement of the required valuation allowance and an overstatement of retained earnings of the
same amount. Although the error does not materially impact the statements of operations for the three year period
presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Form 10-K/A, the correction of the entire
cumulative balance sheet difference in the current period would be material to the current period operating results. The
correction of the error increased the reported net deferred tax liability by $156.3 million and $166.8 million and
increased the accumulated deficit balance by those same amounts as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively,
compared to the amounts previously reported. The error did not have an impact on the Company’s liquidity or cash
flows from operations, nor did it have an impact on the Company’s compliance with any of its debt covenants.
Financial information included in the accompanying financial statements and the notes thereto reflect the effects of the
corrections described in the preceding discussion and tables below.

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015
Previously As Previously As

Reported Adjusted Reported Adjusted
(In millions, except per share data)
Results of Operations Amounts

Income tax benefit $(84.0 ) $045 ) $1764 ) $(207.1)
Loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes (6743 ) (663.8 ) (1,813.9 ) (1,783.2)
Net loss (731.9 ) (7214 ) (1,988.9 ) (1,958.2)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders (739.8 ) (729.3 ) (1,996.0 ) (1,965.3)

Basic and diluted loss per share - loss from continuing operations  $(37.30 ) $(36.72 ) $(100.34) $(98.65)

Balance Sheet Amounts (at period end)
Deferred income taxes $17.6 $173.9 $69.1 $235.9
Accumulated deficit $(1,243.2) $(1,399.5) $(503.4 ) $(670.2)
Year Ended
December 31,
2014
Previously As
Reported Adjusted
(In millions, except
per share data)
Results of Operations Amounts

Income tax provision $201.2 $1474

Loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes (749.1 ) (6953 )
Net loss (7773 ) (7235 )
Net loss attributable to common stockholders (787.0 ) (7332 )

Basic and diluted loss per share - loss from continuing operations  $(42.52 ) $(39.51 )
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Balance Sheet Amounts (at period end)
Deferred income taxes $89.1 $286.6
Retained earnings $1,570.5 $1,373.0
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PEABODY ENERGY CORPORATION

(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Filing Under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code

On April 13, 2016 (the Petition Date), Peabody and a majority of its wholly owned domestic subsidiaries as well as
one international subsidiary in Gibraltar (the Filing Subsidiaries, and together with Peabody, the Debtors) filed
voluntary petitions for reorganization (the petitions collectively, the Bankruptcy Petitions) under Chapter 11 of Title
11 of the U.S. Code (the Bankruptcy Code) in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Eastern District of Missouri
(the Bankruptcy Court). The Company’s Australian operations and other international subsidiaries are not included in
the filings. The Debtors' Chapter 11 cases (collectively, the Chapter 11 Cases) are being jointly administered under the
caption In re Peabody Energy Corporation, et al., Case No. 16-42529 (Bankr. E.D. Mo.). The Debtors continue to
operate their business as “debtors-in-possession” under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court and in accordance with
the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code and orders of the Bankruptcy Court. In general, as
debtors-in-possession, the Debtors are authorized under Chapter 11 to continue to operate as an ongoing business, but
may not engage in transactions outside the ordinary course of business without the prior approval of the Bankruptcy
Court.

The filings of the Bankruptcy Petitions constituted an event of default under the Company’s prepetition credit
agreement as well as the indentures governing certain of the Company’s debt instruments, as further described in Note
14. "Current and Long-term Debt" to the consolidated financial statements, and all unpaid principal and accrued and
unpaid interest due thereunder became immediately due and payable. Any efforts to enforce such payment obligations
are automatically stayed as a result of the Bankruptcy Petitions and the creditors' rights of enforcement are subject to
the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code.

Additionally, on the Petition Date, the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) determined that Peabody’s common stock
was no longer suitable for listing pursuant to NYSE regulations, and trading in the Company’s common stock was
suspended. The Company's common stock began trading on the OTC Pink Sheets marketplace under the symbol
BTUUQ on April 14, 2016. Following the Petition Date, the NYSE formally de-listed the Company's common stock.
In August 2016, the Company outlined a business plan intended to form the basis for its plan of reorganization, as
further described below. As a result of its reorganization, the Company expects to emerge from its Chapter 11 Cases
with the competitive cost structure necessary to improve its financial position and provide long-term stability for its
stakeholders in the face of potentially volatile supply and demand conditions. Important aspects of the Company’s
emergence business strategy include (i) a continued focus on safe, cost-disciplined mining operations and reclamation
activities, (ii) maximization of the most profitable elements of its asset base and potential divesture of non-strategic
assets, (iii) investment return-driven capital discipline, and (iv) a reduction of overall debt and fixed charges.

Filing of Plan of Reorganization with the Bankruptcy Court. In order to successfully emerge from the Chapter 11
Cases, the Debtors must propose and obtain confirmation from the Bankruptcy Court of a plan of reorganization that
satisfies the requirements of the Bankruptcy Code. The Debtors retain the exclusive right to file a plan of
reorganization until May 1, 2017, and have the exclusive right until June 30, 2017 to obtain the necessary acceptances
to a plan. These periods may be extended by the Bankruptcy Court for cause. If the Debtors’ exclusivity period were to
lapse, any party in interest may file a plan of reorganization for any of the Debtors.

On January 27, 2017, the Debtors filed with the Bankruptcy Court their Second Amended Joint Plan of
Reorganization of Debtors and Debtors in Possession (as further modified, the Plan) and a related Second Amended
Disclosure Statement with Respect to Second Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization of Debtors and Debtors in
Possession (Disclosure Statement). The Plan provides for, among other things, (1) classification and treatment of
various claims and equity interests, (2) a reduction of the Company’s debt upon emergence, and (3) the recapitalization
of the Company through a rights offering and private placement for equity securities of the Company. The Bankruptcy
Court approved the Disclosure Statement by order entered on January 27, 2017.

The reorganization contemplated by the Plan will reduce the Debtors' debt burden by over $6.6 billion, but does not
compromise existing coal mining reclamation obligations. The Plan will provide creditors with recoveries, funded in
large part by a $1.95 billion first lien exit facility, a $750 million rights offering available to holders of second lien and
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general unsecured claims, and a $750 million private placement offering of new mandatory convertible preferred stock
of the Company. Under the Plan, current holders of the Company’s equity interests will not receive any distributions,
and their equity interests will be canceled once the Plan becomes effective.
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PEABODY ENERGY CORPORATION

(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The Company and various creditor constituencies entered into an agreement which serves as the cornerstone of the
Plan (the Global Settlement). The Global Settlement is premised upon a consensual resolution of a number of complex
issues that have been the subject of extensive and vigorous negotiations post-petition among the Debtors and holders
of certain second lien notes. Under the Global Settlement, certain lenders will backstop the first lien exit facility by
agreeing to take up to $1.5 billion in take-back paper in the event the Debtors are unable to raise the exit facility,
subject to certain restrictions as set forth in the Plan. Similarly, holders of certain second lien notes have agreed that,
at the Company's sole discretion, in partial satisfaction of their claims, they may receive $450 million in cash, $450
million of first lien debt on the same terms as the exit facility or $450 million of new second lien notes at terms and
conditions set forth in the Plan. A third group of lenders and other parties have agreed to backstop the $750 million
rights offering and invest through the $750 million private placement offering in order to ensure that the Company
raises the $1.5 billion equity investment that will be necessary to consummate the Plan.

On January 11, 2017, the Debtors obtained an exit facility commitment letter (Exit Facility Commitment Letter) from
a consortium of lenders (Lenders), pursuant to which, in connection with the consummation of the Plan, the Lenders
have agreed to provide a senior secured term loan facility (Term Loan Facility) in an aggregate amount of (a) $1.5
billion, less (b) the aggregate principal amount of privately placed debt securities (Notes) of the Company, or special
purpose escrow issuer, issued on or prior to the closing date of the Term Loan Facility (Closing Date), plus (c) any
amount of additional senior secured term loans funded on the Closing Date at the sole discretion of the Term Loan
Facility's arranging Lenders and the Company.

The commitments of the Lenders to provide the Term Loan Facility are subject to the occurrence or waiver of all
conditions precedent to the effectiveness of the Plan, other than the closing and funding of the Term Loan Facility
(and the Notes issued in lieu thereof, if any). The Lenders’ commitments to provide and arrange the Term Loan
Facility will terminate on a dollar-for-dollar basis to the extent of the issuance of the Notes.

On February 8, 2017, the Company announced the pricing of a $950.0 million senior secured term loan. The term loan
will mature in 2022 and bears interest at a fluctuating rate of LIBOR plus 4.50% per annum, with a 1.00% LIBOR
floor. The closing of the term loan is expected to occur in early April 2017, concurrently with the anticipated effective
date of the Plan and subject to customary closing conditions and final documentation. The proceeds from the term
loan will be used to fund a portion of the distributions to creditors provided for under the Plan.

Also on February 8, 2017, the Company announced that a special purpose wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
priced an offering of $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.000% senior secured notes due 2022 and $500.0
million aggregate principal amount of 6.375% senior secured notes due 2025, each exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The offering of the notes closed on February 15, 2017 at
which time the net proceeds of the offering were funded into an escrow account pending the Plan Effective Date. The
notes are being offered by a special purpose wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. If certain conditions are
satisfied on or before August 1, 2017, the net proceeds from the offering will be released from escrow to fund a
portion of the distributions to creditors provided for under the Plan, and the Company will become the obligor under
the notes.

Pursuant to the Plan, the Company will use reasonable best efforts to cause the Company's common stock
(Reorganized PEC Common Stock) and Preferred Equity (as defined below) to be listed on the New York Stock
Exchange as soon as practicable after the Plan Effective Date.

The Plan also provides for a long-term incentive plan (the LTIP) for directors, management and other employees of
the Company, including reservation of an amount of Reorganized PEC Common Stock for the LTIP.

In addition, in accordance with the Plan, a nine member Board of Directors of the Company was established (the
Reorganized PEC Board). The Reorganized PEC Board is comprised of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
eight independent directors.

On January 26, 2017, the Bankruptcy Court approved the amended Disclosure Statement, and authorized the Debtors
to begin soliciting votes from creditors to approve the Plan. Subsequently, the Debtors solicited votes on the Plan. On
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March 15, 2017, the Debtors filed a revised version of the Plan. On March 16, 2017, the Bankruptcy Court held a
hearing to determine whether the Plan should be confirmed. On March 17, 2017, the Bankruptcy Court entered an
order confirming the Plan.

Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 10-K/A F- 11
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Although the Bankruptcy Court has confirmed the Plan, the Debtors have not yet consummated all of the transactions
that are contemplated by the Plan. Rather, the Debtors intend to consummate these transactions in the near future, on
or before the Plan Effective Date. As set forth in Section V.B of the Plan, there are certain conditions precedent to the
occurrence of the Plan Effective Date, which must be satisfied or waived in accordance with the Plan in order for the
Plan to become effective and the Debtors to emerge from the Chapter 11 Cases. The Debtors anticipate that each of
these conditions will be either satisfied or waived by early April 2017, which is the target for the Debtors' emergence
from the Chapter 11 Cases. On the Plan Effective Date, the Debtors will, generally, no longer be governed by the
Bankruptcy Court's oversight.

Under the provisions set forth in Section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Court confirmed the Plan
even though the Plan was not accepted by all impaired classes of claims and equity interests. The classes of claims or
equity interests that will not receive or retain any property under the Plan on account of such claims or interests were
deemed to have voted to reject the Plan. The precise requirements and evidentiary showing for confirming a plan
notwithstanding its rejection by one or more impaired classes of claims or equity interests depends upon a number of
factors, including the status and seniority of the claims or equity interests in the rejecting class (e.g., secured claims or
unsecured claims, subordinated or senior claims, preferred or common stock). Generally, the Bankruptcy Court
confirmed the Plan and allowed it to be “crammed down” on owners of the Company's common stock, even though the
shareowners will receive no recovery under the Plan, because the Debtors demonstrated that (1) no class junior to the
common stock is receiving or retaining property under the Plan and (2) no class of claims or interests senior to the
common stock is being paid more than in full.

Notices to Creditors; Effect of Automatic Stay. Shortly after the Petition Date, the Debtors began notifying all known
current or potential creditors of the Chapter 11 filing. Pursuant to Section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code, the filing of
the Bankruptcy Petitions automatically stayed most actions against the Debtors, including actions to collect
indebtedness incurred prior to the Petition Date or to exercise control over the Debtors’ property. Subject to certain
exceptions under the Bankruptcy Code, the filing of the Debtors” Chapter 11 Cases also automatically stayed the
continuation of most legal proceedings, including certain of the third party litigation matters described in Note 26.
"Commitments and Contingencies" and Note 27. "Matters Related to the Bankruptcy of Patriot Coal Corporation" of
this report or the filing of other actions against or on behalf of the Debtors or their property to recover on, collect or
secure a claim arising prior to the Petition Date or to exercise control over property of the Debtors’ bankruptcy estates,
unless and until the Bankruptcy Court modifies or lifts the automatic stay as to any such claim. Notwithstanding the
general application of the automatic stay described above, governmental authorities may determine to continue actions
brought under their police and regulatory powers.

The automatic stay remains in place pending the occurrence of the Plan Effective Date. After the Plan Effective Date,
subject to certain limited exceptions, holders of claims against the Debtors and interests in the Debtors will be bound
by the discharge, release and exculpation provisions set forth in Sections V.E.2, V.E.4 and V.E.5 of the Plan and will
be enjoined from taking any action against the reorganized Debtors pursuant to the injunction provisions set forth in
Section V.E.3 of the Plan and paragraphs 16 through 31 of the order confirming the Plan.

Appointment of Creditors' Committee. As required by the Bankruptcy Code, the United States Trustee for the Eastern
District of Missouri appointed an official committee of unsecured creditors (the Creditors' Committee) on April 29,
2016. On January 4, 2017, the United States Trustee for the Eastern District of Missouri filed a document with the
Bankruptcy Court indicating that additional members had been added to the Creditors' Committee. The Creditors'
Committee represents all unsecured creditors of the Debtors and has a right to be heard on all matters that come before
the Bankruptcy Court. The Creditors' Committee has been generally supportive of the Debtors’ positions on various
matters. After negotiations between the Creditors' Committee and the Debtors, the Debtors agreed to include the
following provisions in the Plan in exchange for the Creditors' Committee's support for the Plan: (a) holders of Class
5B Claims (as defined in the Plan) will have the option to elect to receive, in lieu of receiving other distributions on
such claims, their pro rata share of $75 million in cash (with recoveries capped at 50%) and (b) the cash distributable
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to Class 5A Claims (as defined in the Plan) will be set at $5 million. In exchange for these, and certain other,
provisions, the Creditors' Committee agreed to support the Plan.

Rejection of Executory Contracts. Under Section 365 and other relevant sections of the Bankruptcy Code, the Debtors
may assume, assume and assign, or reject certain executory contracts and unexpired leases, including leases of real
property and mining equipment, subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court and certain other conditions. In
general, rejection of an executory contract or unexpired lease is treated as a prepetition breach of the executory
contract or unexpired lease in question and, subject to certain exceptions, relieves the Debtors of performing their
future obligations under such executory contract or unexpired lease but entitles the contract counterparty or lessor to a
prepetition general unsecured claim for damages caused by such deemed breach. Counterparties to such rejected
contracts or leases can file claims against the Debtors for such damages. Generally, the assumption of an executory
contract or unexpired lease requires the Debtors to cure existing defaults under such executory contract or unexpired
lease.

Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 10-K/A F- 12
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Under the terms of the Plan, the Debtors will reject all of their executory contracts and unexpired leases unless the
Debtors expressly provide for the assumption of any such executory contract or unexpired lease, or any such
executory contract or unexpired lease is otherwise assumed pursuant to the terms of the Plan. With limited exceptions,
the assumptions and rejections of the executory contracts and unexpired leases pursuant to the Plan will occur as of
the Plan Effective Date.

Liabilities subject to compromise and resolution in the Chapter 11 proceedings will likely arise in the future as a result
of damage claims created by the Debtors’ rejection of various executory contracts and unexpired leases. Such claims
may be material (see “Magnitude of Potential Claims” below).

Impact of the Chapter 11 Cases on Certain Leases. The Company leases equipment and facilities under various
noncancelable lease agreements. Certain lease agreements were subject to the restrictive covenants of the 2013 Credit
Facility and include cross-acceleration provisions, under which the lessor could require certain remedies including,
but not limited to, immediate recovery of the present value of any remaining lease payments. In relation to the
Company's non-debtor subsidiaries, the Company is in various stages of negotiating stand-still arrangements with
some lessors confirming the lessor will not exercise those rights. The Company does not currently believe it is
probable the lessors will exercise those rights for the non-debtor subsidiaries. The lessors' rights related to the Debtor
subsidiaries were automatically stayed as a result of the filing of the Chapter 11 Cases. As of December 31, 2016, the
Company had approximately $189 million of remaining commitments under these non-debtor lease arrangements.
Adequate Protection. The Debtors were required to make adequate protection payments subsequent to the Petition
Date to certain secured lenders and other parties in accordance with Section 502(b)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code in
order to continue using the assets comprising collateral under the Debtors’ first lien debt and because of the priming
liens granted to the DIP Lenders, as defined in Note 14. "Current and Long-term Debt". Such payments are included
in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Magnitude of Potential Claims. The Debtors filed with the Bankruptcy Court schedules and statements of financial
affairs setting forth, among other things, the assets and liabilities of the Debtors, subject to the assumptions filed in
connection therewith. The schedules were not prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and are subject to amendment or modification.

Bankruptcy Rule 3003(c)(3) requires the Bankruptcy Court to set the time within which proofs of claim must be filed
in a Chapter 11 case. The Bankruptcy Court established August 19, 2016 (the Bar Date) as the last date and time for
each person or entity to file a proof of claim against the Debtors. The Bankruptcy Court also established October 11,
2016, as the last date for governmental units to file a proof of claim against the Debtors. Subject to certain exceptions,
the Bar Date applies to all claims against the Debtors that arose prior to the Petition Date.

As of March 20, 2017, nearly 7,000 claims had been filed with the Bankruptcy Court against the Debtors, and new
and amended claims are expected to be filed in the future, including claims amended to assign values to claims
originally filed with no designated value. Management has identified, and expects to continue to identify, many claims
that it believes should be disallowed by the Bankruptcy Court because they are duplicative, have been later amended
or superseded, are without merit, are overstated or for other reasons. The Bankruptcy Court has disallowed certain
claims and has not yet ruled on other objections to claims. Management expects to continue to file objections in the
future. Because the process of analyzing and objecting to claims will be ongoing, the number of disallowed claims
may increase significantly in the future.

Through the claims resolution process, differences in amounts scheduled by the Debtors and claims filed by creditors
will be investigated and resolved, including through the filing of objections with the Bankruptcy Court where
appropriate. In light of the substantial number and amount of claims filed, the claims resolution process may take
considerable time to complete, and management expects that it will continue after emergence from Chapter 11.
Accordingly, the ultimate number and amount of allowed claims is not presently known, nor is the exact recovery
with respect to allowed claims presently known.
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Costs of Reorganization. The Company has incurred and will continue to incur significant costs associated with
reorganization. The amount of these costs, which are being expensed as incurred, are expected to significantly affect
the Company’s results of operations. For additional information, see Note 2. “Reorganization Items, Net".
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Effect of Filing on Creditors and Equity Holders. Under the priority structure established by the Bankruptcy Code,
unless creditors agree otherwise, prepetition claims and post-petition claims must be satisfied in full before equity
holders are entitled to receive any distribution or retain any property under a plan of reorganization. Under the Plan,
current holders of Peabody common stock will not retain or receive any property, and the common stock, and other
Peabody equity interests, will be canceled upon the Plan Effective Date. As discussed above (see “Filing of Plan of
Reorganization with the Bankruptcy Court”), because the Plan satisfied the requirements of Section 1129(b) of the
Bankruptcy Code, the Plan was confirmed notwithstanding its rejection by the holders of Peabody common stock and
notwithstanding the fact that such holders do not receive or retain any property on account of their equity interests
under the plan.

Newly Adopted Accounting Standards

Going Concern. In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued disclosure guidance that
requires management to evaluate, at each annual and interim reporting period, whether substantial doubt exists about
an entity's ability to continue as a going concern and, if applicable, to provide related disclosures. As outlined by that
guidance, substantial doubt about an entity's ability to continue as a going concern exists when relevant conditions and
events, considered in the aggregate, indicate that it is probable that an entity will be unable to meet its obligations as
they become due within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued (or are available to be issued).
The new guidance is effective for annual reporting periods ending after December 15, 2016 (the year ending
December 31, 2016 for the Company) and interim periods thereafter, with early adoption permitted.

The Company is currently operating its business as “debtors-in-possession” under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy
Court, has incurred net losses for the years ended 2016, 2015 and 2014, and had an accumulated deficit as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue for
one year from the date these financial statements are issued. However, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order
confirming the Plan on March 17, 2017 and the Company's current projections, based on the confirmed Plan, indicate
that it is probable the Company will have sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations as they become due within one
year after the date of this report. The confirmed Plan provides for the elimination of the Company's existing debt
outstanding at December 31, 2016, which is discussed in Note 14. "Current and Long-term Debt." The Company's
projections include the debt issued and planned equity issuance as part of its restructuring which are discussed above
in “Filing of Plan of Reorganization with the Bankruptcy Court." Given the Plan confirmation on March 17, 2017,
management believes it is probable the Plan will become effective and consummated in early April 2017, and
emergence from the Chapter 11 Cases will occur at that time. There are certain substantial conditions precedent for the
confirmed Plan to become effective and legally binding. Management believes it is probable these conditions
precedent to the Plan effective date will be satisfied or waived by the Company’s targeted emergence date in early
April 2017. Based on the confirmation of the Plan and the Company's financial projections, management believes it is
probable the conditions that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern have been
alleviated.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as
a going concern and contemplate the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of
business, the likelihood of which has been increased by the Bankruptcy Court’s confirmation of the Company’s Plan
and the Company's ability to obtain exit financing, but is contingent on the Company’s ability to successfully
consummate the Plan and maintain sufficient liquidity, among other factors. As a result of the Bankruptcy Petitions,
the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities are subject to uncertainty. If the Plan were not to become
effective and the Company continued to operate as debtors-in-possession under Chapter 11, the Company may sell or
otherwise dispose of or liquidate assets or settle liabilities, subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court or as
otherwise permitted in the ordinary course of business for amounts other than those reflected in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. Further, the Plan is expected to materially change the amounts and classifications of
assets and liabilities reported in the consolidated financial statements. The accompanying consolidated financial
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statements do not include any adjustments related to the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and
classification of liabilities or any other adjustments that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue
as a going concern or as a consequence of the Bankruptcy Petitions.

Deferred Financing Costs. On April 7, 2015, the FASB issued accounting guidance that requires deferred financing
costs to be presented as a direct reduction from the related debt liability in the financial statements rather than as a
separately recognized asset. Under the new guidance, amortization of such costs will continue to be reported as
interest expense. In August 2015, an update was issued that clarified that debt issuance costs associated with
line-of-credit arrangements may continue to be reported as an asset. The new guidance became effective
retrospectively for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2015 (January 1, 2016 for the Company).
There was no material impact to the Company's results of operations or cash flows in connection with the adoption of
the guidance.

Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 10-K/A F- 14
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The impact to the Company's consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2015 was as follows:

Before After
Application Application
of Adjustment of
Accounting Accounting
Guidance Guidance
(Dollars in millions)

Other current assets $503.1 $ (555 ) $ 447.6

Investments and other assets 382.6 (18.9 ) 363.7

Total assets 11,021.374.4 ) 10,946.9

Current portion of long-term debt 5,930.4 (55.5 ) 5,874.9

Long-term debt, less current portion 385.2 (18.9 ) 366.3

Total liabilities 10,269.6474.4 ) 10,195.2

Income Taxes. In November 2015, the FASB issued accounting guidance that requires entities to classify all deferred
tax assets and liabilities, along with any related valuation allowance as noncurrent on the balance sheet. Under the
new guidance, each jurisdiction will now only have one net noncurrent deferred tax asset or liability. The new
guidance does not change the existing requirement that only permits offsetting within a jurisdiction. The new guidance
will be effective prospectively or retrospectively for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016 and interim
periods therein, with early adoption permitted. The Company elected early adoption of this guidance effective
December 31, 2016 on a prospective basis. There was no material impact to the Company's results of operations,
financial condition, cash flows or financial statement presentation in connection with the adoption of the guidance.
Compensation - Stock Compensation. In March 2016, the FASB issued accounting guidance which identifies areas for
simplification involving several aspects of accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax
consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, an option to recognize gross stock compensation
expense with actual forfeitures recognized as they occur, as well as certain classifications on the statement of cash
flows. The new guidance will be effective prospectively for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016 and
interim periods therein, with early adoption permitted. The Company elected early adoption of this guidance effective
December 31, 2016. There was no material impact to the Company's results of operations, financial condition, cash
flows or financial statement presentation in connection with the adoption of the guidance.

Accounting Standards Not Yet Implemented

Revenue Recognition. In May 2014, the FASB issued a comprehensive revenue recognition standard that will
supersede nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP. The new standard provides a single
principles-based, five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers, which steps are to (1) identify the
contract(s) with the customer, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction
price, (4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract and (5) recognize revenue when
each performance obligation is satisfied. More specifically, revenue will be recognized when promised goods or
services are transferred to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration expected in exchange for those
goods or services. The standard also requires entities to disclose sufficient qualitative and quantitative information to
enable financial statement users to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows
arising from contracts with customers.

Under the originally issued standard, the new guidance would have been effective for interim and annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2016 (January 1, 2017 for the Company). On July 9, 2015, the FASB delayed the
effective date of the new revenue recognition standard by one year (January 1, 2018 for the Company) with early
adoption permitted, but not before the original effective date. The standard allows for either a full retrospective
adoption or a modified retrospective adoption. While the Company is in the process of evaluating the impact that the
adoption of this guidance will have on its financial statement presentation, its preliminary assessment is that it will not
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have a material impact on its results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Inventory. In July 2015, the FASB issued guidance which requires entities to measure most inventory “at the lower of
cost and net realizable value®, thereby simplifying the current guidance under which an entity must measure inventory
at the lower of cost or market (market in this context is defined as one of three different measures, one of which is net
realizable value). The guidance does not apply to inventories that are measured by using either the last-in, first-out
method or the retail inventory method. The new guidance will be effective prospectively for annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2016 (January 1, 2017 for the Company), and interim periods therein, with early adoption
permitted. While the Company is finalizing its evaluation of the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have, it
does not expect a material impact to its results of operations, financial condition, cash flows and financial statement
presentation.

Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 10-K/A F- 15
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Lease Accounting. In February 2016, the FASB issued accounting guidance that will require a lessee to recognize in
its balance sheet a liability to make lease payments and a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying
asset for the lease term for leases with lease terms of more than 12 months. Consistent with current U.S. GAAP, the
recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee primarily will
depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease. Additional qualitative disclosures along with specific
quantitative disclosures will also be required. The new guidance will take effect for public companies for fiscal years,
and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018 (January 1, 2019 for the Company),
with early adoption permitted. Upon adoption, the Company will be required to recognize and measure leases at the
beginning of the earliest period presented using a modified retrospective approach. The Company is in the process of
evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on its results of operations, financial condition, cash
flows and financial statement presentation.

Financial Instruments - Credit Losses. In June 2016, the FASB issued accounting guidance related to the measurement
of credit losses on financial instruments. The pronouncement replaces the incurred loss methodology to record credit
losses with a methodology that reflects the expected credit losses for financial assets not accounted for at fair value
with gains and losses recognized through net income. This standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019 (January 1, 2020 for the Company) and interim periods therein,with early adoption permitted for
fiscal years, and interim periods therein, beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is in the process of
evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on its results of operations, financial condition, cash
flows and financial statement presentation.

Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments. In August 2016, the FASB issued accounting guidance to
amend the classification of certain cash receipts and cash payments in the statement of cash flows to reduce diversity
in practice. The new guidance will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017 (January 1, 2018
for the Company) and interim periods therein, with early adoption permitted. The amendments in this update should
be applied retrospectively to all periods presented, unless deemed impracticable, in which case, prospective
application is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating this guidance and its impact on classification of certain
cash receipts and cash payments in the Company's statements of cash flows.

Restricted Cash. In November 2016, the FASB issued accounting guidance which will reduce diversity in the
presentation of restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows. The new guidance will be
effective retrospectively for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017 (January 1, 2018 for the Company) and
interim periods therein, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating this guidance and its
impact, if any, on the Company's statements of cash flows.

Sales

The Company’s revenue from coal sales is realized and earned when risk of loss passes to the customer. Under the
typical terms of the Company’s coal supply agreements, title and risk of loss transfer to the customer at the mine or
port, where coal is loaded to the transportation source(s) that serves each of the Company’s mines. The Company
incurs certain “add-on” taxes and fees on coal sales. Reported coal sales include taxes and fees charged by various
federal and state governmental bodies and the freight charged on destination customer contracts.

Other Revenues

"Other revenues" include net revenues from coal trading activities as discussed in Note 9. "Coal Trading," as well as
coal sales revenues that were derived from the Company’s mining operations and sold through the Company’s coal
trading business. Also included are revenues from customer contract-related payments, royalties related to coal lease
agreements, sales agency commissions, farm income, property and facility rentals and generation development
activities. Royalty income generally results from the lease or sublease of mineral rights to third parties, with payments
based upon a percentage of the selling price or an amount per ton of coal produced.

Discontinued Operations and Assets Held for Sale
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The Company classifies items within discontinued operations in the consolidated financial statements when the
operations and cash flows of a particular component of the Company have been (or will be) eliminated from the
ongoing operations of the Company as a result of a disposal (by sale or otherwise) and represents a strategic shift that
has (or will have) a major effect on the entity's operations and financial results. Refer to Note 5. "Discontinued
Operations" for additional details related to discontinued operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 10-K/A F- 16
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Inventories

Coal is reported as inventory at the point in time the coal is extracted from the mine. Raw coal represents coal
stockpiles that may be sold in current condition or may be further processed prior to shipment to a customer. Saleable
coal represents coal stockpiles which require no further processing prior to shipment to a customer.

Coal inventory is valued at the lower of average cost or market. Coal inventory costs include labor, supplies,
equipment (including depreciation thereto) and operating overhead and other related costs incurred at or on behalf of
the mining location. Market represents the estimated net realizable value of the inventory, which considers the
projected future sales price of the particular coal product, less applicable selling costs, and, in the case of raw coal,
estimated remaining processing costs. The valuation of coal inventory is subject to several additional estimates,
including those related to ground and aerial surveys used to measure quantities and processing recovery rates.
Materials and supplies inventory is valued at the lower of average cost or market, less a reserve for obsolete or surplus
items. This reserve incorporates several factors, such as anticipated usage, inventory turnover and inventory levels.
Investments in Marketable Securities

The Company’s short-term investments in marketable securities, which are included in "Other current assets" in the
consolidated balance sheets, are defined as those investments with original maturities upon purchase of greater than
three months and up to one year. Long-term investments, which are included in "Investments and other assets" in the
consolidated balance sheets, are defined as those investments with original maturities upon purchase of greater than
one year.

The Company classifies its investments in debt securities as either held-to-maturity or available-for-sale at the time of
purchase and reevaluates such designation periodically. Such investments are classified as held-to-maturity when the
Company has the intent and ability to hold the securities to maturity. Investments in debt securities not classified as
held-to-maturity and investments in marketable equity securities are classified as available-for-sale. Available-for-sale
securities are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of income taxes, generally reported in
“Accumulated other comprehensive loss” in the consolidated balance sheets. Realized gains and losses, determined on a
specific identification method, are included in “Interest income” in the consolidated statements of operations.

At each reporting date, the Company performs separate evaluations of its marketable securities to determine if any
unrealized losses present are other-than-temporary. Such evaluations involve the consideration of several factors,
including, but not limited to, the length of time the market value has been less than cost, the financial condition and
near-term prospects of the issuer of the securities and whether the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold
the securities until recovery. No impairment losses were recorded during the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015. Refer to Note 4. "Asset Impairment" for details regarding other-than-temporary impairment losses of $4.7
million recognized during the year ended December 31, 2014 related to the Company's marketable equity securities
holdings.

Property, Plant, Equipment and Mine Development

Property, plant, equipment and mine development are recorded at cost. Interest costs applicable to major asset
additions are capitalized during the construction period. Capitalized interest in 2016, 2015 and 2014 was immaterial.
Expenditures which extend the useful lives of existing plant and equipment assets are capitalized. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to operating costs as incurred. Costs incurred to develop coal mines or to expand the capacity of
operating mines are capitalized. Costs incurred to maintain current production capacity at a mine are charged to
operating costs as incurred. Costs to acquire computer hardware and the development and/or purchase of software for
internal use are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated useful lives.

Coal reserves are recorded at cost, or at fair value in the case of nonmonetary exchanges, of reserves or business
acquisitions.

Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 10-K/A F- 17
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Depletion of coal reserves and amortization of advance royalties is computed using the units-of-production method
utilizing only proven and probable reserves (as adjusted for recoverability factors) in the depletion base. Mine
development costs are principally amortized over the estimated lives of the mines using the straight-line method.
Depreciation of plant and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the shorter of the asset's
estimated useful life or the life of the mine. The estimated useful lives by category of assets are as follows:

Years
Building and improvements 3 to 34
Machinery and equipment 3 to 34
Leasehold improvements Shorter of Useful Life or Remaining Life of Lease
Equity and Cost Method Investments
The Company accounts for its investments in less than majority owned corporate joint ventures under either the equity
or cost method. The Company applies the equity method to investments in joint ventures when it has the ability to
exercise significant influence over the operating and financial policies of the joint venture. Investments accounted for
under the equity method are initially recorded at cost and any difference between the cost of the Company’s investment
and the underlying equity in the net assets of the joint venture at the investment date is amortized over the lives of the
related assets that gave rise to the difference. The Company’s pro-rata share of the operating results of joint ventures
and basis difference amortization is reported in the consolidated statements of operations in “(Gain) loss from equity
affiliates.” Similarly, the Company's pro-rata share of the cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment of its
equity method investments whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar is reported in the consolidated balance
sheet as a component of "Accumulated other comprehensive loss," with periodic changes thereto reflected in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
The Company monitors its equity and cost method investments for indicators that a decrease in investment value has
occurred that is other than temporary. Examples of such indicators include a sustained history of operating losses and
adverse changes in earnings and cash flow outlook. In the absence of quoted market prices for an investment,
discounted cash flow projections are used to assess fair value, the underlying assumptions to which are generally
considered unobservable Level 3 inputs under the fair value hierarchy. If the fair value of an investment is determined
to be below its carrying value and that loss in fair value is deemed other than temporary, an impairment loss is
recognized. Refer to Note 4. "Asset Impairment" and Note 7. "Investments" for details regarding other-than-temporary
impairment losses of $276.5 million recorded during the year ended December 31, 2015 related to certain of the
Company's equity and cost method investments. No such impairment losses were recorded during the years ended
December 31, 2016 or 2014.
Asset Retirement Obligations
The Company’s asset retirement obligation (ARO) liabilities primarily consist of spending estimates for surface land
reclamation and support facilities at both surface and underground mines in accordance with applicable reclamation
laws and regulations in the U.S. and Australia as defined by each mining permit.
The Company estimates its ARO liabilities for final reclamation and mine closure based upon detailed engineering
calculations of the amount and timing of the future cash spending for a third party to perform the required work.
Spending estimates are escalated for inflation and then discounted at the credit-adjusted, risk-free rate. The Company
records an ARO asset associated with the discounted liability for final reclamation and mine closure. The obligation
and corresponding asset are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. The ARO asset is amortized on
the units-of-production method over its expected life and the ARO liability is accreted to the projected spending date.
As changes in estimates occur (such as mine plan revisions, changes in estimated costs or changes in timing of the
performance of reclamation activities), the revisions to the obligation and asset are recognized at the appropriate
credit-adjusted, risk-free rate. The Company also recognizes an obligation for contemporaneous reclamation liabilities
incurred as a result of surface mining. Contemporaneous reclamation consists primarily of grading, topsoil
replacement and re-vegetation of backfilled pit areas.
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Contingent Liabilities

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal and environmental matters related to its continuing and
discontinued operations and certain historical, non-coal producing operations. In connection with such matters, the
Company is required to assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes, as well as potential ranges of
probable losses.

Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 10-K/A F- 18
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A determination of the amount of reserves required for these matters is made after considerable analysis of each
individual issue. The Company accrues for legal and environmental matters within "Operating costs and expenses"
when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The
Company provides disclosure surrounding loss contingencies when it believes that it is at least reasonably possible
that a material loss may be incurred or an exposure to loss in excess of amounts already accrued may exist.
Adjustments to contingent liabilities are made when additional information becomes available that affects the amount
of estimated loss, which information may include changes in facts and circumstances, changes in interpretations of
law in the relevant courts, the results of new or updated environmental remediation cost studies and the ongoing
consideration of trends in environmental remediation costs.

Accrued contingent liabilities exclude claims against third parties and are not discounted. The current portion of these
accruals is included in “Accounts payables and accrued expenses” and the long-term portion is included in “Other
noncurrent liabilities” in the consolidated balance sheets. In general, legal fees related to environmental remediation
and litigation are charged to expense. The Company includes the interest component of any litigation-related penalties
within "Interest expense" in the consolidated statements of operations.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using a balance sheet approach. The Company accounts for deferred income taxes by
applying statutory tax rates in effect at the reporting date of the balance sheet to differences between the book and tax
basis of assets and liabilities. A valuation allowance is established if it is “more likely than not” that the related tax
benefits will not be realized. Significant weight is given to evidence that can be objectively verified including history
of tax attribute expiration and cumulative income or loss. In determining the appropriate valuation allowance, the
Company considers the projected realization of tax benefits based on expected levels of future taxable income,
available tax planning strategies, reversals of existing taxable temporary differences and taxable income in carryback
years.

The Company recognizes the tax benefit from uncertain tax positions only if it is “more likely than not” the tax position
will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities based on the technical merits of the position. The tax
benefits recognized from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. To the extent the Company’s assessment of such tax positions
changes, the change in estimate will be recorded in the period in which the determination is made. Tax-related interest
and penalties are classified as a component of income tax expense.

Postretirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits

The Company accounts for postretirement benefits other than pensions by accruing the costs of benefits to be provided
over the employees’ period of active service. These costs are determined on an actuarial basis. The Company’s
consolidated balance sheets reflect the accumulated postretirement benefit obligations of its postretirement benefit
plans. The Company accounts for changes in its postretirement benefit obligations as a settlement when an irrevocable
action has been effected that relieves the Company of its actuarially-determined liability to individual plan participants
and removes substantial risk surrounding the nature, amount and timing of the obligation’s funding and the assets used
to effect the settlement. See Note 17. "Postretirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits" for information related
to postretirement benefits.

Pension Plans

The Company sponsors non-contributory defined benefit pension plans accounted for by accruing the cost to provide
the benefits over the employees’ period of active service. These costs are determined on an actuarial basis. The
Company’s consolidated balance sheets reflect the funded status of the defined benefit pension plans. See Note 18.
"Pension and Savings Plans" for information related to pension plans.

Restructuring Activities

From time to time, the Company initiates restructuring activities in connection with its repositioning efforts to
appropriately align its cost structure or optimize its coal production relative to prevailing market conditions. Costs

107



Edgar Filing: PEABODY ENERGY CORP - Form 424B3

associated with restructuring actions can include early mine closures, voluntary and involuntary workforce reductions,
office closures and other related activities. Costs associated with restructuring activities are recognized in the period
incurred.

Included as a component of "Restructuring and pension settlement charges” in the Company's consolidated statements
of operations for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were aggregate restructuring charges of $15.5
million, $23.5 million and $26.0 million, respectively, primarily associated with voluntary and involuntary workforce
reductions. The majority of the cash expenditures associated with the charges recognized in 2016 were paid in 2016.

Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 10-K/A F- 19
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Derivatives

The Company recognizes at fair value all contracts meeting the definition of a derivative as assets or liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets, with the exception of certain coal trading contracts for which the Company has elected to
apply a normal purchases and normal sales exception.

With respect to derivatives used in hedging activities, the Company assesses, both at inception and at least quarterly
thereafter, whether such derivatives are highly effective at offsetting the changes in the anticipated exposure of the
hedged item. The effective portion of the change in the fair value of derivatives designated as a cash flow hedge is
recorded in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” until the hedged transaction impacts reported earnings, at which
time any gain or loss is reclassified to earnings. To the extent that periodic changes in the fair value of derivatives
deemed highly effective exceeds such changes in the hedged item, the ineffective portion of the periodic non-cash
changes are recorded in earnings in the period of the change. If the hedge ceases to qualify for hedge accounting, the
Company prospectively recognizes changes in the fair value of the instrument in earnings in the period of the change.
The potential for hedge ineffectiveness is present in the design of certain of the Company’s cash flow hedge
relationships and is discussed in detail in Note 8. "Derivatives and Fair Value Measurements" and Note 9. "Coal
Trading." Gains or losses from derivative financial instruments designated as fair value hedges are recognized
immediately in earnings, along with the offsetting gain or loss related to the underlying hedged item.

The Company’s asset and liability derivative positions are offset on a counterparty-by-counterparty basis if the
contractual agreement provides for the net settlement of contracts with the counterparty in the event of default or
termination of any one contract.

Non-derivative contracts and derivative contracts for which the Company has elected to apply the normal purchases
and normal sales exception are accounted for on an accrual basis.

Business Combinations

The Company accounts for business combinations using the purchase method of accounting. The purchase method
requires the Company to determine the fair value of all acquired assets, including identifiable intangible assets and all
assumed liabilities. The total cost of acquisitions is allocated to the underlying identifiable net assets, based on their
respective estimated fair values. Determining the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed requires
management's judgment and the utilization of independent valuation experts, and often involves the use of significant
estimates and assumptions, including assumptions with respect to future cash inflows and outflows, discount rates and
asset lives, among other items.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates its long-lived assets held and used in operations for impairment as events and changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets might not be recoverable. Factors that would indicate
potential impairment to be present include, but are not limited to, a sustained history of operating or cash flow losses,
an unfavorable change in earnings and cash flow outlook, prolonged adverse industry or economic trends and a
significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which a long-lived asset is being used or in its physical
condition. The Company generally does not view short-term declines in thermal and metallurgical coal prices as a
triggering event for conducting impairment tests because of historic price volatility. However, the Company generally
does view a sustained trend of depressed coal pricing (for example, over periods exceeding one year) as an indicator
of potential impairment.

Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are identifiable cash flows that are largely independent of the
cash flows of other groups of assets. For its active mining operations, the Company generally groups such assets at the
mine level, or the mining complex level for mines that share infrastructure, with the exception of impairment
evaluations triggered by mine closures. In those cases involving mine closures, the related assets are evaluated at the
individual asset level for remaining economic life based on transferability to ongoing operating sites and for use in
reclamation-related activities, or for expected salvage. For its development and exploration properties and portfolio of
surface land and coal reserve holdings, the Company considers several factors to determine whether to evaluate those
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assets individually or on a grouped basis for purposes of impairment testing. Such factors include geographic
proximity to one another, the expectation of shared infrastructure upon development based on future mining plans and
whether it would be most advantageous to bundle such assets in the event of sale to a third party.
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When indicators of impairment are present, the Company evaluates its long-lived assets for recoverability by
comparing the estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by those assets under various assumptions
to their carrying amounts. If such undiscounted cash flows indicate that the carrying value of the asset group is not
recoverable, impairment losses are measured by comparing the estimated fair value of the asset group to its carrying
amount. As quoted market prices are unavailable for the Company's individual mining operations, fair value is
determined through the use of an expected present value technique based on the income approach, except for
non-strategic coal reserves, surface lands and undeveloped coal properties excluded from the Company's long-range
mine planning. In those cases, a market approach is utilized based on the most comparable market multiples available.
The estimated future cash flows and underlying assumptions used to assess recoverability and, if necessary, measure
the fair value of the Company's long-lived mining assets are derived from those developed in connection with the
Company's planning and budgeting process. The Company believes its assumptions to be consistent with those a
market participant would use for valuation purposes. The most critical assumptions underlying the Company's
projections and fair value estimates include those surrounding future tons sold, coal prices for unpriced coal,
production costs (including costs for labor, commodity supplies and contractors), transportation costs, foreign
currency exchange rates and a risk-adjusted, after-tax cost of capital (all of which generally constitute unobservable
Level 3 inputs under the fair value hierarchy), in addition to market multiples for non-strategic coal reserves, surface
lands and undeveloped coal properties excluded from the Company's long-range mine planning (which generally
constitute Level 2 inputs under the fair value hierarchy).

Refer to Note 4. "Asset Impairment" for details regarding impairment charges related to long-lived assets of $247.9
million, $1,001.3 million and $149.7 million recognized during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

Fair Value

For assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the consolidated financial statements, the
Company defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Foreign Currency

Functional currency is determined by the primary economic environment in which an entity operates, which for the
Company's foreign operations is generally the U.S. dollar because sales prices in international coal markets and the
Company's sources of financing those operations is denominated in that currency. Accordingly, substantially all of the
Company’s consolidated foreign subsidiaries utilize the U.S. dollar as their functional currency. Monetary assets and
liabilities are remeasured at year-end exchange rates while non-monetary items are remeasured at historical rates.
Income and expense accounts are remeasured at the average rates in effect during the year, except for those expenses
related to balance sheet amounts that are remeasured at historical exchange rates. Gains and losses from foreign
currency remeasurement related to tax balances are included as a component of "Income tax (benefit) provision,"
while all other remeasurement gains and losses are included in "Operating costs and expenses." The total impact of
foreign currency remeasurement on the consolidated statements of operations was a net loss of $7.4 million, $6.4
million and $1.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Company owns a 50% equity interest Middlemount Coal Pty Ltd. (Middlemount), which owns the Middlemount
Mine in Queensland, Australia. Middlemount utilizes the Australian dollar as its functional currency. Accordingly, the
assets and liabilities of that equity investee are translated to U.S. dollars at the year-end exchange rate and income and
expense accounts are translated at the average rate in effect during the year. The Company's pro-rata share of the
translation gains and losses of the equity investee are recorded as a component of "Accumulated other comprehensive
loss." Australian dollar denominated stockholder loans to the Middlemount Mine, which are long term in nature, are
considered part of the Company's net investment in that operation. Accordingly, foreign currency gains or losses on
those loans are recorded as a component of foreign currency translation adjustment. The Company recorded foreign
currency translation losses of $1.8 million, $34.9 million and $41.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2016,
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2015 and 2014, respectively.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based compensation at the grant date fair value of awards and recognizes the related
expense over the service period of the awards. See Note 20. "Share-Based Compensation" for information related to
share-based compensation.
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Exploration and Drilling Costs

Exploration expenditures are charged to operating costs as incurred, including costs related to drilling and study costs
incurred to convert or upgrade mineral resources to reserves.

Advance Stripping Costs

Pre-production. At existing surface operations, additional pits may be added to increase production capacity in order
to meet customer requirements. These expansions may require significant capital to purchase additional equipment,
expand the workforce, build or improve existing haul roads and create the initial pre-production box cut to remove
overburden (that is, advance stripping costs) for new pits at existing operations. If these pits operate in a separate and
distinct area of the mine, the costs associated with initially uncovering coal (that is, advance stripping costs incurred
for the initial box cuts) for production are capitalized and amortized over the life of the developed pit consistent with
coal industry practices.

Post-production. Advance stripping costs related to post-production are expensed as incurred. Where new pits are
routinely developed as part of a contiguous mining sequence, the Company expenses such costs as incurred. The
development of a contiguous pit typically reflects the planned progression of an existing pit, thus maintaining
production levels from the same mining area utilizing the same employee group and equipment.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). In doing so, estimates and assumptions are made that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. These estimates are based on historical experience and on
various other assumptions deemed reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
Company's actual results may differ materially from these estimates. Significant estimates inherent in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements include, but are not limited to, accounting for sales and cost recognition,
postretirement benefit plans, environmental receivables and liabilities, asset retirement obligations, evaluation of
long-lived assets for impairment, income taxes including deferred tax assets, fair value measurements and
contingencies.

(2) Reorganization Items, Net

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 852, "Reorganizations," the statement of operations shall
portray the results of operations of the reporting entity during the pendency of the Chapter 11 Cases. Revenues,
expenses (including professional fees), realized gains and losses, and provisions for losses resulting from
reorganization and restructuring of the business shall be reported separately as "reorganization items".

The Company's reorganization items for the year ended December 31, 2016 consisted of the following:

Year
Ended
December
31,2016
(Dollars
in
millions)
Professional fees $88.4
Loss on termination of derivative contracts 75.2
Accounts payable settlement gains (1.8 )
Interest income (1.8 )
Other (1.0 )
Reorganization items, net $159.0
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As a result of filing the Bankruptcy Petitions, counterparties to certain derivative contracts terminated the agreements
shortly thereafter in accordance with their contractual terms and the Company adjusted the corresponding liabilities to
be equivalent to the termination value and allowed claim amount of each contract. Such liabilities are considered first
lien debt and are included within "Liabilities subject to compromise” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
at December 31, 2016.

Professional fees are only those that are directly related to the reorganization including, but not limited to, fees
associated with advisors to the Debtors, the Creditors' Committee and certain secured and unsecured creditors.
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Interest income reflects interest earned due to the preservation of cash as a result of the automatic stay pursuant to
Section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, $68.1 million of cash payments were made for "Reorganization items,
net".

(3) Liabilities Subject to Compromise

Liabilities subject to compromise include unsecured or under-secured liabilities incurred prior to the Petition Date.
These liabilities represent the amounts expected to be allowed on known or potential claims to be resolved through the
Chapter 11 Cases and remain subject to future adjustments based on negotiated settlements with claimants, actions of
the Bankruptcy Court, rejection of executory contracts, proofs of claims or other events. Additionally, liabilities
subject to compromise also include certain items that may be assumed under a plan of reorganization, and as such,
may be subsequently reclassified to liabilities not subject to compromise. Generally, actions to enforce or otherwise
effect payment of prepetition liabilities are subject to the automatic stay or an approved motion of the Bankruptcy
Court, as discussed in Note 1. "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies".

Liabilities subject to compromise consisted of the following:

. . December
Previously Reported Balance Sheet Line 31,2016
(Dollars
in
millions)
Debt (D $8,080.3
Interest payable 172.6
Environmental liabilities 61.9
Trade payables 58.4
Postretirement benefit obligations (2 34.6
Other accrued liabilities 324
Liabilities subject to compromise $8,440.2

0 Includes $7,771.2 million of first lien, second lien and unsecured debt, $257.3 million of derivative contract
terminations, and $51.8 million of liabilities secured by prepetition letters of credit.
@ TIncludes liabilities for unfunded non-qualified pension plans, all the participants of which are former employees.

Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 10-K/A F- 23
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(4) Asset Impairment
Year Ended December 31, 2016
The following costs are reflected in "Asset impairment” in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2016:

Reportable

Segment

Australi@0 orate

Metallurﬁg1 ther Consolidated

Mining

(Dollars in millions)
Asset impairment charges $193.2 $ 547  $ 2479
Australian Metallurgical Mining
On November 3, 2016, Peabody Australia Mining Pty Ltd, one of the Company’s Australian subsidiaries, entered into
a definitive share sale and purchase agreement (SPA) for the sale of all of its equity interest in Metropolitan Collieries
Pty Ltd, the entity that owns the Metropolitan mine in New South Wales, Australia and the associated interest in the
Port Kembla Coal Terminal, to a subsidiary of South32 Limited (South32). Pursuant to the SPA, the Company will
receive cash consideration of $200 million, subject to a customary working capital adjustment. The transaction also
includes contingent consideration that enables the Company to share equally with South32 in any revenue above an
agreed metallurgical coal price forward curve, after taxes, royalties and appropriate discounts, on all coal sold for the
12 months following completion of the transaction, subject to extension if a minimum amount of coal is not sold
during that period. The closing of the transaction is conditional on receipt of approval from the Australian
Competition and Consumer Commission (the ACCC). On February 22, 2017, the ACCC issued a Statement of Issues
relating to the transaction, noting that the ACCC is continuing to review the transaction. On February 24, 2017,
pursuant to its right under the SPA, South32 extended the CP End Date (as defined in the SPA) from March 3, 2017 to
April 17,2017. On March 21, 2017, the ACCC notified the Company that it has extended the date on which it intends
to render its decision regarding the transaction to April 27, 2017, which date extends beyond the CP End Date. As a
result, the Company is assessing its options under the SPA.
The Company determined that, as a result of entering into the transaction, and the approval of the Company’s Board of
Directors of such a transaction in October 2016, the Metropolitan mine was deemed to meet held-for-sale accounting
criteria in the fourth quarter of 2016. Accordingly, the Company recorded an after-tax impairment charge of $193.2
million to write down the assets to their estimated selling price, which is the best estimate of fair value under a
held-for-sale accounting model.
Corporate and Other
During a 2016 review of its asset portfolio and prepetition leases, the Company identified certain non-strategic
Midwestern coal reserves held under lease that were determined to be uneconomical to be mined in the future. As a
result, the Company rejected certain leases and recognized an aggregate impairment charge of $37.5 million. The
Company also recognized a $17.2 million impairment charge to record at fair value certain non-strategic Australian
metallurgical assets classified as held for sale. For additional information regarding those divested assets, refer to Note
22. "Resource Management, Acquisitions and Other Commercial Events".
Risks and Uncertainties
The Company's mining and exploration assets and mining-related investments may be adversely affected by numerous
uncertain factors that may cause the Company to be unable to recover all or a portion of the carrying value of those
assets. The Company generally does not view short-term declines in thermal and metallurgical coal prices as an
indicator of impairment. However, the Company generally views a sustained trend (for example, over periods
exceeding one year) of adverse coal pricing or unfavorable changes thereto as a potential indicator of impairment.
Because of the volatile and cyclical nature of coal prices and demand, it is reasonably possible that coal prices may
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decrease and/or fail to improve in the near term, which, absent sufficient mitigation such as an offsetting reduction in
the Company's operating costs, may result in the need for future adjustments to the carrying value of the Company's
long-lived mining assets and mining-related investments.

Peabody Energy Corporation 2016 Form 10-K/A F- 24

117



Edgar Filing: PEABODY ENERGY CORP - Form 424B3

Table of Contents

PEABODY ENERGY CORPORATION

(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The Company's assets whose recoverability and values are most sensitive to near-term pricing include certain
Australian metallurgical and thermal assets and certain U.S. coal properties being leased to unrelated mining
companies under agreements that require royalties to be paid as the coal is mined. These assets had an aggregate
carrying value of $1,407.3 million as of December 31, 2016. The Company conducted a review of those assets for
recoverability as of December 31, 2016 and determined that, other than the charges described above, no further
impairment charge was necessary as of that date.
Year Ended December 31, 2015
The following costs are reflected in "Asset impairment” in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2015:

Reportable Segment

Australi#mustralian Midwestern

MetallurBheainal U.S. Corporate Consolidated
.. . . . and Other
Mining Mining  Mining
(Dollars in millions)
Asset impairment charges:
Long-lived assets $6752 $ 17.5 $ 402 $2684 $1,001.3
Equity method investment — — — 276.5 276.5
Total $6752 $ 17.5  $ 40.2 $5449 $1,277.8

Australian Metallurgical and Thermal Mining

Due to the severity of the decline in seaborne metallurgical and thermal coal pricing observed during 2015 and other
adverse supply and demand conditions noted during the year that drove an unfavorable change in the expected timing
of eventual seaborne supply and demand rebalancing, the Company concluded that indicators of impairment existed
surrounding its Australian mining platform as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2015. Accordingly, the Company
reviewed its Australian mining assets for recoverability at those dates and determined that the carrying values of three
of its active mines that produce metallurgical coal were not recoverable and recognized impairment charges of $230.5
million and $144.5 million during the three-month periods ended June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2015, respectively,
to write those assets down to their estimated fair value.

Also during 2015, the Company reviewed its portfolio of mining tenements and surface lands to identify non-strategic
assets that could be monetized. In connection with that review, certain of such assets were deemed to meet
held-for-sale accounting criteria or were otherwise deemed more likely to generate cash flows through divestiture
rather than development, with the long-term plans for certain adjacent assets also consequently affected. Accordingly,
the Company recognized an aggregate impairment charge of $317.7 million to write down the targeted divestiture
assets and abandoned assets to their estimated fair value.

Midwestern U.S. Mining

The Company identified indicators of impairment to be present for one of its inactive surface mines due to the
property no longer being part of the Company's long-term mining plan as a result of the decline in thermal coal prices
and a lack of observed interest from potential buyers in acquiring the asset. Accordingly, the Company recognized an
impairment charge of $30.5 million to write down the asset to its estimated fair value.

Due to the severity of the decline in thermal coal pricing observed during 2015 and other adverse market conditions
noted during 2015, the Company identified indicators of impairment to be present for one of its Midwestern U.S.
Mining assets. Due to the adverse conditions, the Company's long-term mining plan changed and the asset was no
longer part of the long-term mining plan. Accordingly, the Company recognized an impairment charge of $9.7 million
to write down the asset to its estimated fair value.

Corporate and Other

Long-lived Assets. In connection with a similar review of the Company's asset portfolio conducted during 2015 to
identify non-strategic domestic assets that could be monetized, the Company identified non-strategic,

118



Edgar Filing: PEABODY ENERGY CORP - Form 424B3

non-coal-supplying assets as held-for-sale rather than held-for-use as of December 31, 2015. Accordingly, the
Company recognized an impairment charge of $182.2 million to write the assets down to estimated fair value.
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The Company also identified indicators of impairment to be present for several of its non-strategic undeveloped coal
properties that are no longer part of the Company's long-term mining plan as a result of the decline in thermal coal
prices and a lack of observed interest from potential buyers in acquiring those assets. Accordingly, the Company
recognized an aggregate impairment charge of $86.2 million to write down the assets to their estimated fair value.
Equity Method Investment. Due to the impairment indicators noted above surrounding the Company's Australian
platform, the Company similarly reviewed its total investment in Middlemount, which owns the Middlemount Mine in
Queensland, Australia, as of December 31, 2015. As a result of that review, the Company determined that the carrying
value of its equity investment in Middlemount was other-than-temporarily impaired and recorded a charge of $46.6
million to write-off the investment.
The Company, along with the other equity interest holder, also periodically makes loans to Middlemount pursuant to
the related stockholders’ agreement for purposes of funding capital expenditures and working capital requirements.
The Company reviewed the loans for impairment and recorded a charge of $229.9 million to write down the full
carrying value of the Subordinated Loans. The Subordinated Loans are provided on an equal and shared basis with the
other equity interest holder, and the Company's and the other equity interest holder's claims under the Subordinated
Loans are on equal footing. The Company also has Priority Loans to Middlemount which have seniority over the fully
impaired Subordinated Loans. The Priority Loans amounted to $84.8 million and $65.2 million at December 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively, and were not impaired as of December 31, 2016 as the Company had the intent and ability to
hold the loans to payoff and Middlemount had sufficient assets to settle.
The fair value estimates made during the Company's impairment assessments were determined in accordance with the
methods outlined in Note 1. "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies", except in certain instances where
indicative bids were received related to non-strategic assets being marketed for divestiture. In those instances, the
indicative bids were also considered in estimating fair value.
Year Ended December 31, 2014
The following costs are reflected in "Asset impairment” in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2014:

Reportable Segment

Australdstralian Western

Metalligeental  U.S. Slf;pootr}?: Consolidated
MiningMining  Mining
(Dollars in millions)
Asset impairment charges:
Long-lived assets $66.7 $ 119 $ 27 $ 684 $ 149.7
Marketable securities —_ - — 4.7 4.7
Total $66.7 $ 119 $27 $ 731 $ 1544

Australian Metallurgical and Thermal Mining

In 2014, the Company observed continued weakness in seaborne metallurgical and thermal coal pricing that has
persisted longer than the Company previously anticipated and, accordingly, conducted a review of its Australian
Metallurgical Mining and Australian Thermal Mining segment assets for recoverability. Based on that evaluation, the
following Australian segments were impacted as follows:

Australian Metallurgical Mining. The Company determined that the carrying value of one of its active surface mines
and a non-strategic undeveloped coal property were not recoverable and correspondingly recognized an aggregate
impairment charge of $66.7 million to write those assets down from their carrying value to their estimated fair value.
In addition to the impairment indicators surrounding the segment, the fair value of the impaired surface mining
operation was affected by a short remaining economic life compared to those of other operations and the incremental
cost associated with utilizing a contractor to operate the mine.
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Australian Thermal Mining. The Company determined that the carrying values of a non-strategic undeveloped coal
property was not recoverable and correspondingly recognized an aggregate impairment charge of $11.9 million to
write those assets down from its carrying value to their estimated fair value.

Corporate and Other
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The Company also identified indicators of impairment to be present in 2014 for certain assets in its Corporate and
Other segment. Those assets were certain non-strategic undeveloped coal properties in Indiana and Colorado that were
found to be impaired due to a lack of observed interest from potential buyers in acquiring those assets, properties that
are no longer part of the Company's long-term mining plan and, in the case of certain of the assets, an election by the
Company to terminate or allow the lapse of mining-related leases. The Company determined the carrying value of
those holdings to not be recoverable and recognized an aggregate impairment charge of $68.4 million to write down
the carrying value of the related properties.
(5) Discontinued Operations
Discontinued operations include certain former Australian Thermal Mining and Midwestern U.S. Mining segment
assets that have ceased production and other previously divested legacy operations, including Patriot Coal Corporation
and certain of its wholly-owned subsidiaries (Patriot).
Summarized Results of Discontinued Operations
Results from discontinued operations were as follows during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014:

Year Ended December

31,

2016 2015 2014

(Dollars in millions)
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes $(57.6) $(182.2) $(23.8)
Income tax benefit (provision) — 7.2 44 )
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes $(57.6) $(175.0) $(28.2)
There were no significant revenues from discontinued operations during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015
and 2014.
Assets and Liabilities of Discontinued Operations
Assets and liabilities classified as discontinued operations included in the Company's consolidated balance sheets
were as follows:

December 31,

2016 2015
(Dollars in
millions)
Assets:
Other current assets $0.2  $3.1
Investments and other assets 159 132
Total assets classified as discontinued operations $16.1 $16.3
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $55.9 $60.0
Other noncurrent liabilities 198.5 203.7
Liabilities subject to compromise 209 —

Total liabilities classified as discontinued operations $275.3 $263.7
Patriot-Related Matters. Included in "Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes" for the year ended
December 31, 2016, is a charge of $54.3 million for the UMWA 1974 Pension Plan related to the settlement of
litigation. Refer to Note 27. "Matters Related to the Bankruptcy of Patriot Coal Corporation" for information
surrounding charges recorded during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 associated with the bankruptcy of
Patriot.
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Wilkie Creek Mine. In December 2013, the Company ceased production and started reclamation of the Wilkie Creek
Mine in Queensland, Australia. On June 30, 2014, Queensland Bulk Handling Pty Ltd (QBH) commenced litigation
against Peabody (Wilkie Creek) Pty Limited, the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company that owns the
Wilkie Creek Mine, alleging breach of a Coal Port Services Agreement (CPSA) between the parties. Included in "Loss
from discontinued operations, net of income taxes" for the year ended December 31, 2015 is a $9.7 million charge
related to the settlement of that litigation. In September 2016, a settlement was reached under which the Company
agreed to pay $13.0 million Australian dollars ($9.9 million USD) to QBH in a full and final settlement of all claims
each party had against the other in relation to the CPSA litigation. Refer to Note 26. "Commitments and
Contingencies" for additional information surrounding the QBH matter.
(6)Inventories
Inventories as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 consisted of the following:

December 31,

2016 2015

(Dollars in

millions)
Materials and supplies $104.5 $115.9
Raw coal 29.6 759
Saleable coal 69.6 116.0
Total $203.7 $307.8

Materials and supplies inventories presented above have been shown net of reserves of $5.6 million and $4.7 million
as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
(7) Investments
Investments in Marketable Securities
Investments in available-for-sale securities were liquidated prior to December 31, 2015. Proceeds from sales and
maturities of available-for-sale debt securities amounted to $90.3 million and $13.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Company realized zero net gains associated with those sales and
maturities during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.
Equity Method Investments
The Company’s equity method investments include its joint venture interest in Middlemount in addition to certain
other equity method investments. The table below summarizes the book value of those investments, which is reported
in “Investments and other assets” in the consolidated balance sheets, and the related (income) loss from equity affiliates:
(Income) Loss from

Book Equity

Value at  Affiliates for the Year

December 3Hnded

December 31,

2016 2015 2016 2015 2014

(Dollars in millions)
Equity interest in Middlemount Coal Pty Ltd $— $— $(22.6) $7.0 $98.5
Other equity method investments 05 1.5 64 89 9.1
Total equity method investments $0.5 $1.5 $(16.2) $15.9 $107.6
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During the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, Middlemount generated revenues of approximately $183
million, $160 million and $165 million (on a 50% basis). During the year ended December 31, 2015, due to sustained
weakness in seaborne metallurgical coal prices that had persisted longer than the Company had previously anticipated,
a history of operating losses at the mine and the magnitude of the difference between the estimated fair value and the
carrying value of its equity investment, the Company determined the carrying value of its equity investment in
Middlemount to be other-than-temporarily impaired. Correspondingly, the Company recorded an impairment charge
of $46.6 million to write down the carrying value of its equity investment. The Company determined its Subordinated
Loans to Middlemount were also fully impaired resulting in an additional impairment charge of $229.9 million. A
total impairment charge related to Middlemount of $276.5 million was reflected in "Asset impairment" in the
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2015. Refer to Note 4. "Asset Impairment" for
additional background surrounding the impairment charge recognized in 2015. At December 31, 2016, the Company
had priority loans related to Middlemount with a carrying value of $84.8 million reflected in "Investments and other
assets". Refer to Note 10. "Financing Receivables" for additional background on the Company's loans with
Middlemount as of December 31, 2016.

In 2014, the Company recorded to "(Gain) loss from equity affiliates" its pro-rata share of a valuation allowance of
$52.3 million on Middlemount's Australian net deferred tax assets. Based on a Middlemount's history of operating
losses driven by sustained weakness in seaborne metallurgical coal prices, and considering available sources of
taxable income, it was determined in 2014 that the net deferred tax assets are no longer considered more likely than
not of being realized.

There is no remaining unamortized basis difference as of December 31, 2016 between the amount at which the
Company's equity investment in Middlemount is carried and the amount of underlying equity in net assets of
Middlemount. Middlemount had current assets, noncurrent assets, current liabilities and noncurrent liabilities of $47.3
million, $263.4 million, $363.5 million and $50.3 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2016 and $31.7 million,
$348.0 million, $362.2 million and $10.5 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2015 (on a 50% basis).

In addition to its equity method investment, the Company periodically makes loans to Middlemount pursuant to the
related stockholders' agreement. Refer to Note 10. "Financing Receivables" for additional details surrounding those
loans.

(8)Derivatives and Fair Value Measurements

Risk Management — Corporate Hedging Activities

The Company is exposed to several risks in the normal course of business, including (1) foreign currency exchange
rate risk for non-U.S. dollar expenditures and balances, (2) price risk on coal produced by, and diesel fuel utilized in,
the Company's mining operations and (3) interest rate risk that has been partially mitigated by fixed rates on long-term
debt. The Company manages a portion of its price risk related to the sale of coal (excluding coal trading activities)
using long-term coal supply agreements (those with terms longer than one year), rather than using derivative
instruments. Derivative financial instruments have historically been used to manage the Company's risk exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk, primarily on Australian dollar expenditures made in its Australian mining
platform. This risk was historically managed using forward contracts and options designated as cash flow hedges, with
the objective of reducing the variability of cash flows associated with forecasted foreign currency expenditures. The
Company has also used derivative instruments to manage its exposure to the variability of diesel fuel prices used in
production in the U.S. and Australia with swaps or options, which it has also designated as cash flow hedges, with the
objective of reducing the variability of cash flows associated with forecasted diesel fuel purchases. These risk
management activities are collectively referred to as "Corporate Hedging" and are actively monitored for compliance
with the Company's risk management policies.

During the fourth quarter of 2015, the Company performed an assessment of its risk of nonperformance with respect
to derivative financial instruments designated as cash flow hedges in light of three rating agencies downgrading the
Company's corporate credit rating during 2015 and declining financial results. The Company determined its hedging
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relationships were expected to be "highly effective" throughout 2015 based on its quarterly assessments. However, as
a result of a deterioration in the Company's credit profile, the Company could no longer conclude, as of December 31,
2015, that its hedging relationships were expected to be "highly effective" at offsetting the changes in the anticipated
exposure of the hedged item. Therefore, the Company discontinued the application of cash flow hedge accounting
subsequent to December 31, 2015 and changes in the fair value of derivative instruments have been recorded as
operating costs and expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations after that date. Previous fair
value adjustments recorded in "Accumulated other comprehensive loss" were frozen until the underlying transactions
impact the Company's earnings.
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The Company's Bankruptcy Petitions constituted an event of default under the Company's derivative financial
instrument contracts and the counterparties terminated the agreements shortly thereafter in accordance with
contractual terms. The terminated positions are first-lien obligations under the Company's secured credit agreement
dated September 24, 2013 (as amended, the 2013 Credit Facility). The resulting net settlement liability of $257.3
million was accounted for as a prepetition liability subject to compromise without credit valuation adjustments. As of
December 31, 2016, the Company had no derivative financial instruments in place in relation to diesel fuel or foreign
currency exchange rate. The Company is reevaluating its future Corporate Hedging activities and programs.
Based on the previous fair value adjustments of the Company's foreign currency and diesel fuel hedge contracts
recorded in "Accumulated other comprehensive loss", the net loss expected to be reclassified from comprehensive
income to earnings over the next 12 months is approximately $93 million (which excludes the impact of fresh start
reporting rules in connection with emergence from the Chapter 11 Cases).
The tables below show the classification and amounts of pre-tax gains and losses related to the Company’s Corporate
Hedging derivatives during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014:

Year Ended December 31, 2016

Total Loss (Loss) gain
realized reclassified :
Income Statement Classification loss from other .rec.ogmzed
Financial Instrument Losses - Realized recognizedmprehensive 1 theome
in income into .
. . ) derivatives
income income
(Dollars in millions)
Commodity swap contracts Operating costs and expenses $(98.0) $ (86.1 ) $(11.9 )
Commodity swap contracts Reorganization items, net (38.8 ) — (38.8 )
Foreign currency forward contracts Operating costs and expenses (142.9) (145.6 ) 2.7

Foreign currency forward contracts Reorganization items, net (364
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